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FOREWORD | I

The history of the Marler Panﬂly in Canada begins with the -
arrlval in Quebec in 1809 of Leonard Marler, then a junior offieer .
in the British Army Whlle stationed 1n Quebec and acting as |
Cierk 01 Stores in the Fleld Traln of Artillery, he married

Cherlotte Marwuerite de Montmollvn on Aucust 19th, 1810 She

was tne grand—daughter of the Reverend David Prancis de Montmdllin-

who came to Canada in 1768 to be tne MinLSuer of the Church ana
Parish of Quebec
As the family papers contalned very little concernlnv David '

Fran01s de Montmollin, I thought it would be interestinb to see.

xwhau other informatlion about him could" be obtalned. Accord;ngly,

. durling ﬁy many visits to Quebec ovar the last twenty years, I

examined many of the records of his time - The Quebec Gazette,

his own Register of Births, Marriages and Deaths, notarial deeds,

- and other papers - and thus obtainad a good deal of information

. about him. |

In thé notes which follow I have tried to set down more or
less_in chronologicai order the bits and pieces that I}found, |
and to record;these facts simply and &ithout adding a lot .of .-
conjecture of .my own. I hope thet.the nqtes'wiil-be fouﬁd:of some
interest, and.that at some future‘date 1t will be possibie to
supplement them by further notes about Leondrd Marler hlmself and

his Qescendants.

George C. Marler,

“Montreal, March 7th, 1963.
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When the Commission of.Governor‘Murray was 1issued in

| November 1763 appointing him~to be Captain General and Governor in ;'H.
""Chief in and over the Province of Quebec in America, the Instructions'.
given to hin had been the subgect of careful and prolonged considera-'ij
tion (1).. They covered a multitude of matters and vested in the _5- =
governor full authority with respect to the administration of the.f'"

: Province° Religlon was glven spec1al attention,_and several paraf.f”
‘graphs make it'abundantly‘clear that the‘British Crown intended thaty
-the Church of Engiand should be establiShed "both in Principles and ":
Practice" and that the inhabitants should by degrees be induced"to
embrace the Protestant religion and their children brought up in the
principles of it. 4 | ' o ~"

Lest unsuitable persons should seek appointments to any
ecclesiastlcal benefice in the Province, the Governor was instructed"
not to. prefer any Protestant Mlnister “without a certificate from
:the Right Reverend Father in God the Lord Bishop of London of his
" being conformable to the Doctrine and Discipline of the Church of.

’England!_and of good life and conversation 5 . and to make sure that'
3 any appointee condiicted himself in a seemly fashion the Governor'was :
directed - ;."if any person hereafter’preferred}tovaiBenefice»shall-_
aopear to you to give Scandai, either~by_his Doctrine;or his Manners"'- .
to use the best means for his removal. 1 -

At the time the Governor's instructions reached him in -
Quebec, there were, according to his own account but two hundred.

- Protestant subjects in the Province most of whom were "disbanded
soldiers of 1little property and mean capacity" wh11e there were

~

(1) cr. Documents relating to The Constitutional History of Canada,
1759- -1791. ‘Vol. I, . 181 : : ,



" as the Prench -speaking

'some eighty thousand of the "new subjects
Canadians were called (1). In these circumstances it is not hard to.
understand the difficulties under which the Governor laboured -
By his instructions the Governor was directed to appointlﬁ; .
a Council to assist him in the administration of government and to"h}
be composed of the Lieutenant Governors of Montreal and Trois~'.‘
'Riviéres, the Chlef Justice of the Province, the Surveyor Generaii
of Customs‘in America, ‘and eight otheripersons to he.chosen by the :f:_
Governor,_but this did not satisfy many of the_inhabitants. The
: Grand Juryi- whose exact status does_not appear‘to have been too
ciearly defined —'at a meeting held on October 16th 1764, adopted ;'“
' 2 number of presentnents (2), which can only be regarded as criti- ‘.
cisms of the actions of the Governor and Council. These presentments
ranged over a w1de field. The most significant, perhaps, is.that' |
uhich represented that as the Grand Jury 'nust be considered at
present as. the only body representatwve of the Colony, they, as
_British subJects, have a right to bpe consulted before any ordinance'l
that may arffect tne body that they represent be passed into a law"
But it is interesting to notekthat they also.turned their attention
'to Sunday observance and to the need for a ' 'publick protestant school"’l
) , As to the Sabbath the Grand Jury represented° |

- "'ve recommend the exertion of the laws of the Mother. Country
- for the due observance of the Sabbath that the same may no
longer be profaned by selling, buying, keeping open shops, Balls,
Routs, Gaming or any other Idle Divertions (sic), for the better
accomplishing of whilch a Learned Clergyman of a moral and
exemplary life, qualified to preach the Gospel in its prima-
tive (sic) purity in both Languages would be absolutely necessary."

(1) Constitutional Documents, Vol I, pP. 200 note. -
‘ (2) '- " _ 1 : u‘ 1 p. 212 A



This presentment appears not to haV“ been fully understood by the' :-
French- speakina members who, quite obviously shocked to discover what

they had Sioned, soon after averred tnat though they had heard the -

reference to Sunday observance they nad received no explanation of

the proposal to have a minister to preach tne Gospel in both o

‘1anguages (l)

It is not clear whether these presentments were formally

'A'transmitted to the British governmenc, but it was not long before

further reoresentation° to it were made by the Quebec traders (2)

ATheir prime purpose was to seek tne establishment of some form of

.‘government to consist solely of "TOJal and well- afiected Protestants"

of which there were "“a number more than sufficient ;;. to form a

competent and respectable House of Assembly Their petition set

eforth a number 01 grounds of complaint against Governor Murray, and
.among then that of his "discountenancing the Protestant religion by
| almost a Total Neglect of Attendanco upon the Service of the Church
.’leaving the. Protestants to this Daj oestitute of a place of WOrship

: appropriated to themselves

Tne very strained relations between the Governor and the

English speaking traders in the PPOV’nCe led eventually to Murray

being recalled on April lst 1766 e sailed from Quebec on June 28th

and returned to England, but nonetneless he continued for some time

to hold the office of Governor.

On April 7th only a few days after Murray's recall

'Colonel Guy Carleton was commiss1oned as Lieutenant- Governor, but

it was late in September of that yea. before he reached Quebec.

(1) Coastitutional Documents, Vol. I, p. 216.



In the year that followad his arrival in Canada, Carleton,

“in his reports to the British government, expressed his views as to-

the undesirability of 1ntroducing foreign priests into Quebec and

'as to the app01ntment of a coadJutor to the Catholic Bishop of
Quebec,‘but seems to have made no observations with respect to thejdﬁ

.- need of Protestant'clergy or_as.to the appointment.of clergymen

competent to preach the GOSpel in both languages. The government'sb"
de0151on to appOint to the Parishec of Montreal lrois-Rivieres and

Quebec three clergymen whose mother tongue was French must have

: been based principally, if not. entvrely, upon the recommendation,

earlier referred to,_of the Grand Jury. '
| One of these three clergymen was Dav1d Francis de Montmollin
who was app01nted to the Church and Parish of Ouebec.}h

de. Montmollin was of Swiss origin having oeen born at

'Neuchatel in March 1721, very prooably, it is said.(l), in his

father's.house on the rue‘des Moulins. He was the son'of ILouis de
Montmollin, a member of ooth the Grand Conseil and the Consell

Etroit and also secretary of the town. Louis de Montmollin obviously

. was an important person, but he did not have‘the title of "Count"

as was believed by some of hisusons's-descendants (2).

:(l) ’See "Un neuchatelois, premiel pasteur de Quebec .,'

(2) H.C. Stuart, M. A. Rector of anee Rivers in his work "The
. Church of Envland in Canada, 1759-1793" writes:
' "Prancis de Montmollin was born at New Chatel, Switzerland
He was a son of the Count de lMontmollin, and therefore, a
" member of the Bourbon family. His brother John is frequently
mentioned in General Haldimand!s diary. One of his sisters
was a mald of honour to Queen Charlotte, Mr. de Montmollin.
married an English lady, Jane Bell in London ..."
Mr. Stuart says that he was indebted to Mrs. Dorion of
Drummondville, a granddaughter of Mr. de Montmollin, for
these particulars. Mr3, Dorion was in fact his great grand-
daughter, : : ' o
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- ‘Nothing 1s recorded of de Montmollin!'s childhood,l but
it is known that at the age of eighteen he was admitted to the
study'of medicine at Basle Universityiin Switzerland, which he
attended for three years. | | 'd " o

Two years later de Montmollin borrowed some 1500 pounds :,d
on the personal guarantee of his father, at the usurious rate of
17 per cent,‘and set off for Leyden in Holland. :It isvnot known"
whether he continued his study of medicine in ieyden'or not, but

it is recorded that in l745vhe was received as a member of the

'.lfFlemish'church

It may be inferred that he did not stay very long in

ZHolland but continued on his way %o England where he took up

-residence in London. Various notalial deeds to which he was a

-party indicated Iondon as his resicence, and.Maseres (1) describesd

him, ln referring to his app01ntment in 1708 as "a native of

.5witzerland that had resided more than twenty years in England"

This implies that de Montmollln reached England around 1748 ‘at the'

age ‘of twenty seven."

It has not been possible to find out what de Montmollin ';

did in England. HlS biographer, who wrote "Un neuchatelois,.

- premier pasteur de Quebec", supposed that he practised medicine 'f

| and that later he studied theolooy and, also, that he was a tutor

in one of the great Iamilies, but this is pure speculation.

' Two facts are- clearly established : first 'that on

June 2nd 1762, at ‘the age of forty one, he married an English-

woman of the name ‘of Jane Bell at the Church of St. Giles in

(1) Maseres : "Severathommissions“ p. 149.



e  ,.

”'Cripplegate which 1s in Foxe Street,'London,'hothfar.from St. Paulls

Cathedral;'“and, sécond,'that some six years later at the age of

.'forty seven he was ordained a clerk in holy orders in .the

hstablished Church , } .
| >‘ The ceremony of ordinacion took place in the Chapel Royal

of St. James' Palace on March 4uh, 1768 and de_Montmollian 1etterS"A

. of ordination vere issued under tne hand ahd EoiScopal Seal of'theew
E Pight Reverend Richard Terrick, Lord Bishop of London.i Tnis use
.of the Royal Chapel for this ceremony seem to Justify to some
- extent the suggegtion_that de Montmollin had the favourable eye~Of
1sohe person in authority; hutvwhat ie curious.is that three weeksd
~ before his ordination‘de Montmollin;had been appointed Mihister |

'to the Church'anvaarish of Quebec and had received a Mandamus. .

s:i.gn:i.f."yin»fr the Royal will and pleasure and bearing the signature.

‘.'of the Earl of Hlllsborough who had recently become ‘the first

Secretary of State for the Colonies. . .
' Though the first ship r°oa.ng dlrectly to Quebec, thejBrig

Union, sailed a few days axter his ordinatlon, de Montmollin

aremained in England. ‘This is no%t ourpris1ng, for at that seasonhf |

of the year he must have felt 1little inclined to embark on the

~ long voyage to.Quebec.. In those'days,eeven at  the best_of eeasohs,
the crossind could take‘seven or eight Weeks,‘but ih the winter

 months ‘it could well be longer, more dangerous and more disagreeable;l

..Moreover, he must indeed have been nesitant to expose his wife and’

~his two young sons, John Samuel and John Frederic both under five

years of age, to the storms 01 Mercn and the cold and other hazards

of the late w1nter.
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3'de‘Montmollinvevidently decided to.await“the arrival'of'.'
warmer weather, and SO it was that 'some seven weeks after his
ordination he performed his first c1vil act as an ordained minister f
On April 24th, 1768 he visited the Castle at Dover and there _ '

. baptised the infant son of " John and Mary Cane, and made the opening -

5 entry in the Register of Blrths, Marriages and Deaths, which he
"gkept during the long years of his m.nistry. This Register - written' l
:_ leglbly in his own hand - has. been preserved and may be examined o
at the Cathedral of the Holy Trinity in Queoec | . '

" de Montmollin's decis1on not to sail in the Brig Union
appears to have been a wise one, for she encountered very bad
weather durino her passage to Quebec which lasted no 1ess than
A eleven weeks.. The Quebec Gazette reports her arrival on Sunday '
| evening, - May 22nd, and records that the despatches which she orought
. for his Excellency Guy Carleton Eso.,_were sent off by express to
1 his Excellency at Montreal In passing it is interesting to note e'v
‘that these despatches adv1sed Carleton of his appointment as” ‘ |
Governor 1n the place and stead of General Murray, and acquainted

:him with the government's de0131on to appoint ministers to the _ -
f:dparishes of Quebec, Trois-Rividres and Montreal o |
| . The Quebec Gazette also records the arrival 1n.Quebec
cf other ships, two from London and onelfrom Falmouth, 1n its 1ssue_
.of June'9th, butpit seems.unlikely that de Montmollin could have
sailed in‘any of them, as'they must have left England earlier than -
April 24th. It is more likely that he accompanied the 8th Regiment

as to uhich tne Gazette wrltes in its issue of June l6th'
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"Tuesday last (i e. June 1bt th) arrived here one of the

" transports, with part of the 8th Regiment on board. Also

. the Brig... Capt. Montgomery from Glasgow. No person from
-either of them has yet been ashore, the North East winds

- blowing so excesslve hard. Several people in the Iower Town

. and St. Roch have been considerable sufferers from the high
winds and tides, and it 1s feared more wlll share the same
fate as the weather does not in the least seem to abate. "

A week later the Gaze te reported the arrival on the
previous Monday (June 20th) off St. John's, Isle of Orleans, of
three transports with the remainder of the 8th Regiment which on

,the following day landed on the Island where they were to remain
untll the 15th Regiment embarked for ‘England.
When de Montmollin reacned Quebec, Governor Carleton had
" not ‘yet returned from his visit %o Cataraqui as Kingston was ther -
' called, so that 1t was necessary for him to awailt the Governor's
return. The Gazette in its issue oP June 30th reports-'
‘Marpived here from Montreal, His Excellenoy General
- Carleton our governor, accompanied by the Hon. H. T.
. Cramahé Esq., Major Hamilton and Mr. Delery.
~de Montmollin did not have to walt long before he was
'received by the Governor and presented the Mandamus from the King, :
Because the terms in which it was drawn were the: subject-"
| nof discussion between the new rector and the Governor and later'
of correspondence between the Governor and tne authorities in
England, the text of the Mandamus is of some interest. It read.
’as<follows: | | |
"GEORGE R. .
Trusty and Jell beloved vie greet you well.
We having received a gooo Report of the LOJalty,
Abilities, prudent Conduct, and sober Conversation, of

- Our Trusty and Well beloved David Francis de Montmollin,
- Clerk, have thought fit,.hereby, to signify our Will and
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Pleasure to You, that forthwlth, upon Receipt hereof, You

do collate and admit the said David Francis de Montmollin,

. - Clerk, to the Church and Parlbn of Quebec, in our Province
. of Quebec, in America. :

‘ TO HAVE, hold and enjoy the sane, unto him the said David

" Francis de Montmollin, during his natural Life, with all
Rignts, Dues, Profits, and Privileges, thereunto belonving,

_..in as full and ample manner as the Ministers of Churches in

. any of Our Colonies in Americe have usually held, & enJjoyed,
"or of Right ought to hold and enjoy the same. And for so6

- doing This shall be Your. Warrant. And so We bid You heartily
farewell. GIVEN at Our Court at St. James's the 12th Day of -
February 1768 in the Eighth Year of Our Reign. .

. By HlS Majesty!'s Command
| HILLSBOROUGH

David Francis de Montmollin, Clerk
Mlnlster of the Church of Quebec (1)

Though the Mandamus clearly granted to de Montmollin "

 the rlghts, dues, proflts and pr1v11eges belonginv to the Church ‘

and Parlsh 01 Quebec to ‘be enjo jed by him in as f‘ull and ample

manner as ministers of churches in any of the Colonies in America

have usually ehjoyed them; the Governor was quite unwilling:to'.

A'confirm the new rectof's right to these perquisites. Francis

 Masdres (2);'who was the attorney generai,'relates'that»upon"

receipt of the three mandates; de Montmcllinfs and twohothers;

- the Governor was pleased to order the prepération of a draught
" of a commission for Mr. de Montmollin for his examination and

v'perusal and Maseres ‘continues:

"But upon more fully considering the peculiar and .

"~ delicate situation of the province with respect to the
article of religlion, and some claims of property in the
churches, made on behalr of the Roman Catholic inhabitants
of those parishes (i.e. Quebec, Three Rivers and Montreal),
his excellency did not think it expedient to grant these
gentlemen commissions of this form under the seal of the
province; but in lieu whereof gave them licenses to preach
and perform divine service according to the ceremonies of.

(1) Public Archives of Canada, Series .S. Vol. 13, pp. 84-86.

7 L Y - (11 - _ a _ . a (1] - ha N




that:

10.-
the Church of England in the reSpeCtive parishes of Quepec,
anee Rivers and Montreal, under his hand and private seal."

 The Governor despite his reservations as to the rionts,

dues, proxits and privileges nonetheless allowed ‘the new rector to 3

enter upon his ninistry, and accordingly de Montmollin held divine '
| service for the first time on Sunday, July 3rd 1708 following which

“he carried out the first baptism on Canadian soil that of John,

infant. son of John and Ann Honner.

The rather extensive terms used in the Mandamus must

necessarily have disquieted the Governor, and it must have’ been

difficult for him, so soon after his appointment as Governor, not

to follow implioitly the terms of the Royal mandate .- He,-therefore,
I-did not delay reporting his decision to Lord Hillsborough Secretary '
of State for the Colonies. Writing on July 21st the Governor

reported that on his return from Montreal a Mandamus was presented :
by a Mr. Montmollin and another by a Mr Veyssiere fornerly a
Recollet directing him to admit the one to the Church and Parish'

- of Quebec and the other to the Cnurch and. Parish of Trois-anieres-

to enaoy the same durincr life "with all rights, dues, profits and

privileges“ ete., adding-

"As I find these words in every Mandamus, ‘I look upon
it as a stile (silc) of office that has been adopted for many
years for the other provinces, and under that sanction,
unnoticed, has slipped into those for this province tho"
under very different clrcumstances." :

The Governor then went on to point out, with some courage, -

"These general and extensive expressions have occasioned
- no small difficulty already in Civil Matters, and been the -
. cause of many complaints giving.authority to claim fees of
- - Office, etc., that are burthensome, but 1f they are to be



11.

extended to ecclesiastical property, to dispossess the
People of their Parish Churches, and theilr clergy of their
Tithes and all Parochial Dues, for our lawyers are clear
these words import no less, the Evils must be much worse,"

:‘”Believing that such a policy would not have been decided upon

- without the Governor being SO aavised he reported that~

. "I have in the meanwhile, and t111 T am certain of
 the King's pleasure therein, granted them (i.e. de
Montmollin and Veys31ere) commissions which leave the
Power to do all the good they can, or chuse to do, without
authorising them to do Mischief." . .

At the'time the Recollets church was used by both

Roman Catholics and the Church of England The arrancements are

clearly 1nd1cated by -the follow1ng notice, puolished in the Quebec-f

Gazette on May 21st 1767

" "On Sunday next DiVine Service, according to the use
of the Church of England will be at the Recollets' church
and - continue for the summer season, beginning soon after -
~eleven. The drum will beat each Sunday soon after half an
‘hour past ten, and the Recollets' bell will ring to give
notice"of the English service the 1nstant thelr own is
ended."” .

. This was indeed an'unusual arranoement which led Hawkins, the

author of "Quebec, Past and Present" to observe ‘that "the first '

regular church services in Canada were thus performed in a chapel

belonging to a Franciscan order of the Church of Rome", and to

" 2dd somewhat wryly: "After every English service, ‘the chapel was

”subjected to}a'regular lustration for the removal of_the pollution

‘which'itiwas thus supposed to have COntractedQ.

TN,
\

It was evident that de Montmollin had 1earned of these
arrangements for the joint use of the church while he walted for

the Governor to return to Quebec, for he complained of the matter'
to the Gove rnor whose views are eloquently set forth in his letter

to Lord Hillsborough of July 2lst 1768 There he wrote:v

b
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"Mr, Montmollin, notwithstanding we- have in.this %town
the use of two churches in common with the Roman Catholics,
and one entirely to ourselves, thinks it very hard, the :

- Parish Church being still in ruins, I will not give him the
Jesuits! Church, which we took for a store, on our Arrival;
having no further Occasion for it, nor Money to preserve it
from Ruin, it was given up to them above a year ago, and is
now almost repaired at a considerable Expence. He thinks -
it still harder, I disapprove of his takling the Tithes; I

" ‘endeavoured to show him the violence, Injustice and Breach -

- of Treaties I must be gullty of to gratify him in these

" particulars, he replied that Louis the fourteenth had not -
kept his treaties with protestants, he therefore sees no
reason why we should keep ours w1tn Roman Catnolicks.

Wlth hlu leuter the Governor enclosed a copy of the CommiSSLons
ne had given, whlch were in the following form.

”To the Honourable Guy Carleton, Lieutenant Governor and -
Commander-in-Chief of the Province of Quebec, Brigadier
General of His MaJeSuy's Forces, ete, _

Do . . . o e o s s . ... . . . Clerk. Greetlng.

o In obedience to His Majesty's commandes, signilled by
his Mandamus, " dated at St. James', the 12th day of February
last, I do admit you to be Curate and Minister of the Gospel
in the Parish of - (Quebec) in the Province of Quebec, to

- perform the office of a Curate and Minister of the Gospel
in such Church or place set apart for the performance of :
Divine Service as 1is or shall hereafter be appointed by the.

~‘Governor or Commander-in-~Chief of this Province, in reading

.~ the Common Prayers and performing the other services of the

.. Church belonging to the office of a Priest, according to the
Form set forth in the Book of Common Prayer and Administra-
tion of the Sacraments according to the Use of .the Church of
England, and not otherwise, or in any other manner, you
having first sworn, in some of His Majesty's Courts of =
Record in this Province, on the Holy Evangelists to renounce .
all foreign Jjurisdiction and to bear Faith and true ~
Allegiance to His Majesty, King George the 3d, according to
an Act of Parliament in that case made and provided, and to
pay true and Canonical obedience to the Iord Bishop of -

London and his successors, Bishops of London, (to) Hold and
enjoy the said office of Curate and Minister of the Gospel,
‘together with all such dues as shall arise from Persons
professing the Protestant Religion according to the Reforma-
tion of the Church of England, and not otherwise.

GLVEN . + v v ¢ = « « « « « . . . 2lSt July 1768."
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_ ”he'British government fully concurred in the'actions
‘of the Governor, and on October 12th Lord Hlllsborough replied:

""... I have it in Command from His Majesty to signify
to you His approbation of the Commissions you have given to-
- Mr. Montmollin and Mr. Veyssi®re, and your having forbid
. Mr. Montmollin to take tythes, as His Majesty's having
. appointed a stipend to the gentleman to be paid out of the
- revenue, clearly evinced that it was not Hls Majesty's’
'1ntention that he should make any such demands." -

‘ This fully settled de Montmollin's pretensions to the
: taking of tithes, but Lord Hillsoorougn wisned to 1eave no doubt
5 1n the mlnd of the Government as to the more general question of |

the support and encouragement to be given to ‘the Church of England

He contlnued-

"The proper support and encouragement to be glven to
the Church of England.as well as the necessary toleration

to be allowed to His Majesty's new subjects in the exercise
of the Roman Catholic Religion, wlll be matters of serious
attention in the consideration of the general regulations
for the Colony of Quebec, which important bus1ness, I trust
1s now drawing near to some conclu51on. ' :

In the meantime His Majesty does not doubt that you

.will give all necessary protection to the new subjects in
- the exercise of theilr religion; and 1s pleased to recommend
it to you particularly to countenance the established Church,
and to take care that Offices of it are administered with -
a decency corresponding to the purity of its principles.®

- em e e e es e ew em e e, e e

de Montmollln's stlpend was b 200 per annum, but this -
vas . not enough to satisfy hlm. The Governor's decision that he -
A”should not collect tithes led him To consmder other sources of
1ncome, and not unnaturally his thoughts turned to the Chaplainship

of Quebec to whlch a stipend also attached



At that time the Chaplainship was held<py‘the Reverend
e, John Brooke. General Murray had appointed him as "Chaplain.

Lo the- Town of Quebec and as Parlsn Priest to all of His Maaesty's"
,”rctestant subJects in the Government" on December 27th 1760'

= and he bad been formally commiss1oned on October 28th 1761 His

'-JiiP - who is believed to be the author of "Tne Diary of EmilJ

MjibaNue" a. romantlc account - of llLe in Ouebec 1n the early oays--,h1;ﬂ

1ln oelieved to have joined him in October 1763, but went back to.
1and on November 8th, 1764 and appears not to have returned
-eto Quebec., Dr Brooke remained in Quebec until the summer 01 1768 f
“indeed until. af rter. the arrival of de Montmollin and his fa'nily. -
The Quebec Gazette of Ju 1y 7Tth, 1768 advertiseq £he

le at public auction of:

“A1l the - genulne and good Household Furniture belonoing o

to'the Revtid Mr., Brooke"at his House at Mount Pleasant out -

- of Port Louis‘Gate ... .
The sale did»not'take place'on account.of the bad weather,'and"
_1aceoreingly a: Iurther advertisement was published in the Queoec
'Gazette the following week This advertisement referred to the -
'salo of” household furniture of the Rev'd Doctor Brookes, Chaplain'x-'

ki poc Garrison, who proposes embarking for England 1n about a

month",
i
i
lf '

a
i
it

soa"nt to obtain the Chaplainship of Quebec. He must have lost .

bollow1ng Dr. Brooke's return to Envland de Montmollin

little time in dOing so, because, despite the length of'time which
, letters then took to reach England, representations were made'in

June§l769 to Lord Barrington 5'tnerSecretary of War - recommending -

cde Montmollin for the appointment;' de Montmollin mustrhave had



some influence, toe,tfor one of the recommendations was from none
( | o
‘ other than the Blshop of London himself. Iord Barrington's reply .
to the Bishop ﬁakes‘interestinw reading. |
"My Lord, " the Secretary wrote

: : »"Your Lordshlp's note of the 5th instant Iollowed me
hither (Beckett, England) I am much obliged to you for
recommending so fit a Person (as I am convinced Mr.
Montmollin to be from the character you give of him) for'

“the Chaplainship of Quebeck when it shall become vacant;

. I shall most certainly propose him to the King unless.
something extraordinary and unexpected should hanpen,‘
and in that case I shall beg your Lordshlp to direct mny

. ‘eonduct. ,

The Chaplainships of Garrisons are not sold like the

- :Chaplainships of Regiments: - I must therefore beg of your

Lordship to satisfy yourself that there is no pecuniary -
transaction between Dr Brook and Mr Montmollin.“ .

o | Lord Barrington's sympathy seems to have been gained, however,.“
: ‘ . for the next paragraph of his letter seem - to implj a decision to
. give de Montmollln the app01ntment His Lordship contlnued-
"When Mr. Chabran de Lisle was app01nted Chaplain to
Montreal, it was on the condition that whenever he guitted
- that place, the Chaplainship should be given to some other.
‘Clergyman who would réside there: I have no doubt that
your Lordshlp will approve my making the same stipulation
with Mr. Montmollin.. I understand these Chaplains are _
- almost the only protestant Divines established in Canada,
which makes thelr Res1dence pert*cularly necessary."

Dr. Brooae appears not to have been a party to any
arrangement by whicn de MontmoWlin was to succeed ‘him in the
;Cnaplalnshlp of the Garrlson at Ouebec.' ‘On the contrary he was
very much opposed to being deprlved of his pay as chaplain,_at'
least until an'equivalent for it in England was found for,him.
This is quite evident from his letter to the Bishop, written

. . probably'sometime in 1770:
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"To The Right Revd. the Lord Bishop Of'London; '
My Lord |

. As Mr. Montmoulin has renew'd his complaint of doing -
duty at Quebec for the Chaplain of the Garrison soliciting
that he may be obliged to allow him a salary, I shail state o

in writing the duty of the Chaplain; and if it be found that_
Mr. Montmoulin is burdent'!d with any duty on his account, .
which does not bring it's imiedwate recompense, or that

he is nct a considerable gainer by his absence; the -
Chaplain, the necessities of whose family will very i11
~admit any lesstning of his income, must return to his o
‘Garrison, however unsultable traversing Seas and changing ,
Climates may be to his advanc'd tlme of 1life and whatever o
hazards may attend it. : S :

' The soldiery of the Garrfson of Quebec'ls not composed o
- of independent companies, but, regimental, each militarv '
corps having itts proper chaplain or deputy..

o Mr. Montmoulin is depuuy to one regiment the other
.has with 1t the chaplain in commiSSion. ) ~ _ ,

: Hence all that remain to the Cure of bhe Chaplain of
. the Garrison, are the officers of the Staff; wviz, the
- Governor and Lieutenant, Town Major and Serjeant, Barrack-
master and Paymaster with tr families: but four of these
' are single, if not all. ‘ X

, They attend divine service with the troops and people,
- under the reglmental chaplain and Mr. Montmoulin alternately

offlciating.

- If any of the Stafir officers should have families, and' o
_elther the regimental chaplein, or Mr., Montmoulin, should '

thence be called to any extra occasional service, it would
' be with it's reward. .

All of the burden then to Mr. Montmoulin from the
chaplain's absence 1s the probable addition of six persons
- to his congregation. : : :

: I the-chaplain were resident and the Governor to
comnand him any publick duty it wou'd be at the castle, and

. not where the trcops and people assemble, which would be an
intrusion upon the Cures of the regimental chaplain and Mr,
Montmoulin. o

Thi Gentleman is now deputy chaplain to one regiment (1)
the pay fixed by authority at 3s. ster* a day; he may -
probably have the same advantage from the regiment which will
relieve the 10th. It 1is improbable he would have it from any
if the military chaplain were present.

(1) Probably-the 8th Regiment.
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The long connexion of the chaplain with the protestants
in the place would also make other emoluments his which are .

-now Mr. Montmoulin s.

The latter then is gainer very greatly by the absence
of the former without any Increase of Duty, which does not
bring its reward: he must be loser equally by his return
w1thout any Decrease of his Public duty. S

Tne Chaplain therefore, under his MaJesty's pleasure,'

“holding his leave of absence from his Excellency the: Governori'

only, and belng excus'd by Him from all duty, cannot

- voluntarily burden himself with a Pension to Mr. Montmoulin, f;;
consistently with his oblligations to the Governor, or his

duty to his family, and trusts that none will be imposed upon .
him by Power Co . , _ o -

He hopes your Lorsdhip w111 excuse him the mentioning

tupon this occasion, his twelive years service as a military

chaplain, great part of it in a time of war and subject to ,
the hagzards and expenses of it, and that for many duties in
which he serv'd appointment of authority, and particularly
that of chaplain to the Garrison of Quebec 306 (1) days prior
to the dates of his commission, and that of protestant parish

' priest upwards’ of eight years (2), he has had no consideration -

from Government whatsoever, tho' the sum due for them as at
present allow d is 902 L sterling and upwards. .

The 1atter appointment at Montreal Wlth lOO b annual
salary-being given to the chaplain there after only two -

" years service in a time of peace, and the chaplain at Quebec

being superseded in his from the moment it was made profitable,
it was thought a severe hardshlp, and causeless indignity;.

as he perform!'d all occasional offices of his function in - .
Erench, when persons of that language were concern'd in them, . .
so as to be perfectly understood, and could have done more L
had it been wanted; and his conducu, and attention to the

- duties of his vocatlon, had been repeatedly recommended to

public favour 1n Letters to the Society for propagating the |

. Gospel & c¢. representing 'that the protestant minister ougnt

to be enabled to appear not only w1tn Decency but witn .

, Dlgnity.

I hope my Lord, when these things are considered that
your Lordship will be much more dispos'd to recommend to
Government to be recompenstd for.past_serviceS‘that I have
not been paid for, than to lay any new burden upon me; at = - -
least to allow me to possess the full pay of my chaplainship,

i.e. From appointment on Dec. 27th 1760 to Commlssion of -

~27th Oct. 1761.

Tnis would appear to’ fix the date of the letter as being
sometime 1in 1770 ' . :
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t111 I have an equivalent for it, at home. Or if I am order'd
again to Quebec that 1t may be not only on ferms equal to
those of the chaplain at Montreal, but such.as bear a due
proportion to the superioriuy of the place, and the greater
dignlty to be supported in it, and be a mark of regard for

the long and I hope not unvorthJ service, in the perils of

the ocean and of war, and in his MaJesty's Ioreln Dominlons

- of my Iord. A
Your Lordshio's most ooealent and respectfully
| Humble servanc:" a .‘ s
| '3 BROOKE."

. Dr. Brooae's letter would seem to" have settled the
matuer, and for the time being de Montmollln had to content hlmself"
.with being deputy chaplain to one ra olment with pay "iixed by »
fauthorlty s as Dr “Brooke points out, at. 3 shllllngs sterllnc a
day, together with such "reward" as ! any extra occasional service"
mlght bring him. | ‘ , |
| . The matter of the chaolalnshlp of Quebec affords a good L
_ inkllng as to the persistence of de Montmollin. _ Not having . |
succeeded through his earller correspondence in procurinv the :
app01ntment he desired or the addﬁtional allowance that 1t would.':
~entai1 de Montmollln appears to have aporoached the subject
‘Athrough a difierent channel whilch. *s revealed in the correspondence
of Sir Frederick Haldimand

Thomas Gage who had been governor of Montreal was .

a appointed in 1763 to- succeed Lord Jeffrey Amherst as commander

' in chief with headquarters in New VorP There be remained until
sometime early in 1773 when he ootalned leave of absence to return.*
to England to settle some private affairs, and to succeed him in

the command Frederick Haldlmand was summoned from Florida, and
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promoted to the rank of maJor generaa. o
It might vwell be imavlned that when cn ieave in England
»General Gage would be llttle concerned W1th matters of minor -
importance in America, but uhis was not the cas e, and in the“
- Haldimand ‘papers the fol1ow1ng letter (1) written in Iondon
on September lst 1773, by General Gage will be found Part of

A reads as fOllOWS° a _ : . Co
T u o R ..”f:'"t '_-“London,‘Septr; 1st 1773

Dear General_pf .

I am to mention 11kew1ue an Affalr of Mr. Montmolln,
Deputy-Chaplain of Quebéc; who it seems has for some time -
done all the Duty of Chief-Chaplain of that Garrison,
without any allowance of Quarters, Firing and Candle 1t
has been the Fault of the Officers commanding at Quebec,
that the above Gentleman was never returned as Chaplain,
nor indeed was his Appointment ever notified to me.  But
to rectify all Mistakes, by which Mr. Montmolin has been -
a Sufferer, 1t only remalins for you to order the Barrack-
Master General to make him an Allowance of Quarters, Firing ..
and Candle in the same Proportion as 1s made to the Chaplain.
of other Garrisons in America when actually residing, and
‘that said allowance should commence from the time that
Mr., Montmolin has officiatea as Chaplain of Qnebec.

‘Major'Genl Haldimand SR (SOd) ThoS Gage L |
- The tone of this letter is so peremptory that one can
'only 1nfer that de Montmollln,'llbnot formally app01nted as
" Chaplailn to the garrison, at least received the:"Allonance of

' Qtarters, ‘Firing and Candle"

(1) Haldimand Papers BS, Pp. 184-5, ' '
: Gage succeeded Amherst in 1763 as commander in chief with
- hzadquarters at New York. Sailed for England on leave of
absence in 1773 leaving Haldimand in command. Returned the -
following year as governor of Massachusetts. : ' ‘




- of de Montmolljn'" fam.ly 11le in his early days in
‘ Quebec very llttle.is‘ known. Two of his chlldren viere born oefore
| hevcane to Canada,-dohn Samuel and John Frederic.i A third son,
.Pran01s Gaudot - Francis after his father, and Gaudot the - family
name of de Montmollin'a mother -~ Was born 1n Quebec on December '
| ' 9th 1709, at. "L an hour after eleven of a o'clock 1n the mornlng
;f~r . as de Montmollin wrote in his reglster of births. The chila was

.baptlzed on January l8th 1770 Jean Renaud and Martha Renaud -

were hls godfather and godmother respectively,‘while Pierre Gueroutsa
stood proxy for Francis L'Evesque tne other godfather. S |
| The marriage of Jean Renaud and Martha Sheldon was the_7'”
}secona which de Montmollin celebrated _and took place on. October. _
1st, 1768 .Thio,'ln all likelihood Was the start of the friend-
Aship mhlch grew up between the Renauds and the de Montmollln 'lti
' ' was obvnously a compllment to the Renauds that both should be
‘godparencs of the new rector's first born 1n,Canada, but Renaud
himself, who waa a merchant, was one ofdtheAfenaProtestants'among
:;the former inhabitante and ‘this, no doubt 1ed to tbe cloae .fﬁ'A
' relations which existed between the. tvic families. Renaud died on )
~ his 31ztieth birthday and was burled by de Montmollin on March 19th,l
' 1794. Mrs. Renaud came to llve with Mrs de Montmollln-and was
dstill living with her nearly forty years later whenAshe made her"
Will in 1807. | | | | |

de Montmollin's register records the blrth and death oflz

S

. two other chlldren,-Jane and Lewes, who were born to him and his

“wife. OF Jane, he wrote "l??l,»September 5th. At two o'clock in
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the morning-was born my.danghter"; andvthen after inserting his‘
" own name and his wife's and dangh er's, he added for the 13th' |
"Bunled the aoove at Port Louis, aged 7 days About two years.
later, for July 19th 1773, anothen entry of sadness. '"Lewes sonitl
lof David rrancis de Montmollln and Jane his wife was born at
2 o'clock in the mornlng and baptised on the l7th of July and.
died the 18th about 7 o'clock in the morning and buried on 19th
-cof July", | ' .

‘The de Montmoliins had no other children.

_ Some_idea of“de‘Montnollin's work In the earlyxdaYS of
_his ministry may"be‘gatnered from his.OWn accountfwritten‘to the
- Reverend Doctor Burton, Secretary.to tbevSociety fof the R
Propagatlon of the Gospel in Forelon Parts, London, on August 5th,
17?0 ' He offlclated every Sunday to the French Protestant between
9 .and 11 A.M. and to the English Garrison between 11: 30 A M. to
ﬂhl'P'M" He acted as Garrlson Chaplaln, owing to the absence of v
HMr. Brooke for two years, Withont pay", as he was careful to
dpoint out. | ) ‘ B |
| v " His account of his_congregation‘mnst'haﬁe beenvasf:’
| discouraging to'him as it.Was to the Society. in summary he o
4reported” | ‘,, | N . - .t
UThe Congregation is steadily dlmlnlshing. The 1argest
_number of communicants was 15, now only 3. Majority of =

. Protestants are Dissenters, and have their own clergyman.’
There 1s little zeal for religion. . English communicants

number 3 persons. Burlals (1708 1770) 81. Baptisms 78..
Marriages 24, Proselytes 2. He asks for English tracts."
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The Dissenters had Iounded St. Andrew's Church and

ts first regular pastor was the Rev, George Henry, an ex~military '

E chaplaln who began his datles in 1765, continued for many years

after, and died at the- advanccd age of 85.

_ The Soclety was sympatheuic, and early in January 1771 o
the Rev'd Dr. Burton wrote sendlno 10 small Enolish bibles, 20
common prayer books and some small religlous tracts in French -
though de Montmollin had asked for English tracts - to be diotrlbuted‘
to his poor, and one copy of Oeuervald for his own prlvate use.  “""'

‘ de Montmollin replied only on 5th September 1771 the e
day ef‘ﬁhe_birth of his daugh ter Jane, to exprc)s his thanks to
the“Soeiety; The 1etter, from which the first. paragraph appears
to ‘have been washed out, reads as IOllOWS‘ | B

"Reverend Sir - | |

o - » o e > ° . ° .

I shou'd certainly prove myself unworthy of the Favors
you, and the Honourable Soclety are pleased to confer upon
me, was I not in the same time by acknowledging the Reception -
- of your kind letter of the 28th January last, to express my
. gratitude for them. Permit me then, Sir, to beg of you to
present my humble Thanks to the Society for the Books they
were pleased to send me, the Fret of which I payd. I shall
. take care to glve them out according to your Directions. If
anything will advance the true Knowledge of God, and of our
. Holy Religion, after Exhortation and Intreaties made from
- the pulpit, I know none more likely, under the Providence of
God, to promote and pave the way to -it than.religlous Books.
Ignorance begets Bigotry and Superstition; 'nothing is better
calculated to root them out than pious Books, wrote in a plain
. 'style, suitable to the meanest Capacitiles, which are always
. most numerous. Things in this Place in regard to Religion
remain in the State as before. The Members of the French
Church diminish daily. The English Church is rather decreased,
occasioned by families that have left the Place. For my Part
I do my Endeavours to be vigilent in my Calling, to Kindle as
-1t were, the zeal for Religlon very much cool'd and abused (?)
in this place, partly owing, as I take it, from the inhabitants
ThemsSelves ¢ v v« v o o o o o o o o5 s o s o o o o 5 o o o o -

° e o . ° . o o . . . . . L] . . . . . . - . ) . . . . o e . -



1 . selves that come here, after they'have run must (? most)'.l
. ' the World over and 1ived in Places -for a conslderable tinme

w1thout having any Opportunity of attending Divine Service
have by that means contracted an Habit of Neglect, and =
‘Indifferency about Religious Worship. This concludes with
my warmest Wishes and Prayers for the welfare of the Society
in general, and for the Prosperity of every members in '
particular: These are the continual Prayer of

Reverend Sir »
- Your most humble and

. most obedient Servant
B De Montmollin.

Quebec the 5tn
Soer 1771
| At the time de Montmollin and his fami 1y landed in
Quebec Samuel Sills was advert151ng “lodgings to be let ready
furnished at tne London Tavern"; . and not long after the Rev
" Dr. Brookes was making known by notice in the Quebec Gazette that :
on Thursday morning, July Tth, Samuel Morin would sell at public
. auction all the gennine and good household furniture ﬁhich'
belonged to that reverend'gentlenan "at his‘House'at'Mount
Pleasant out of Port Louis Gate" | '
The advertisement glves interesting details,' the
furniture consisted of° o ' .
"Mahogany Bedsteads, Ditto chairs, Ditto tables, black
Birch Chairs, Ditto Tables, Mahogany Card Tables, Ditto Tea -
Tables, Damask, Grogralm and Harrateen (1) Window Curtains,
. three Pieces of rich yellow Grograim and Lace sufficlent to
make a large Bed, a large Mahogany Wardrobe Chest, Looking
Glasses in gilt Frames; Screens, a Plece of fine Jjapant'd
- Furniture, a Mahogany nhight chair and Mahogany chest of .
. Drawers, China, Knives and Forks, Books, Pictures and a
great guantity of useful Kitchen Furnlture.
| As bad weather 1ntervened the sale was postponed but

._  was advertised to "begin peremptorily ¢+ .« . OnN Thursday, the

21st instant, at the London Tavern, Mr. Sill's",

‘(1) Harrateen: 'a coarse woollen cloth.
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| It can only be congecture as to whethner de Montnollin
| took ready furnished 1odvings w1tn Mr. Sills and whether he bought
lsome of Dr.-Brooke‘s furnishings, _buu'itbis a fact that he did_‘
settle‘on the'rue du Sault‘auk hetelots, and thatithere he remained,'
| until some time in the early part of 1775. | )

“In October 1774 de Montmollln concladed arrangements p'
for the purchase of a house and Droperty ‘on de Buade Street which
was closer to the church The house was of stone, three storeys:
| in neLght, and . forty eight feet wide by twenty- seven feet in depth .
: In rear. ‘there was a courtyard sixty feet in depth, and behlnd the"
courtyaro was another piece of land twenty—four-fee two inches o
'i in width by sixty four feet deep wnicn was enciosed by a wall 1n R
"’which there was a porte cochére" or gateway for vehicles. ' .
| v The vendors, Jacques Gulcheauxland.hisdwife,'reserVed
lthevright tovremain in.possession until May ist, 1775, but agreed
that de Mon tmollin could have work done to the second and third
floors and occupy them before trat oato. : “

or the price of ten thousand shillinvs de‘Montmollin
';’paid seventy two hundred shillings by making over to “he'vendors '
a draft payable by Peter Fargues on presentation and bearlng the
,same dato as the deed of sale (1), and he agreed to pay the
~balence WLthln a delaj of three jears, WLth ;n*erest at five per
cent.' The maklng of the cash payment byla sight draft suggests
that Fargues, a prominent merchant of Quebec, wes?de Montmollinfs

banker, and it is elso likely that he was a friend too, for in

(1) The deed of sale was executed before Berthelot AtArtigny,
a Motary, and two witnesses on 30th October 1774.
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-4 tns previous ‘year he had christened his son, giving ‘him the name ;
"of Francis (after de Montmollin), and the new rector had performed_A
the ceremon‘. . ) _ 4 E
.Some 1dea of the dlsposlt*on of’ the property and of the_f!r

use Whicn de Mortmollln and his family expected to make of it |
'maJ be had from the very detailed arranvements wnich they entered
| ;into 1n the follow1ng December (1774) with Louis Fremont They | -
f leased to him for a term of eight years and at an annual rent'of
Vsix hundred shillings currency the‘ground floor and 1ower part of N
"the house, consisting of a store with shelves, a small room behind

- a large room 1ln rear wlth a cupboar d and a kitchen, 1n which de o

‘f'Montmollin reserved passage for hlmself,and his household. 'The

. lease (1) specified that the stairway of the house and the |
_"gambour" (a kind of vestibule) were to be in common, and the
tenant was to be permitted to. h01st and lower (palanguer) barrels 'f
" and casks througn the trap door of the tanbour so as to move tbem
”in and out of the cellar on notiiying the landlord The tenant T
was also to have the use of three small cellars, the fourth
: being reserved for the landlord The basement was to be 1n
common and &lso the shed in the southwest corner of the basement
The toilets were also to be in common, the landlord reserving the':f
buildlnés and stables'near them,vwith the'small garden'which_he R
also reserved_for himself, but he agreed to provide the tenant
b"lodging" for a horee or a cow The gateway of the courtyard
leading to Ste. Anne Street was to be in common.

— am em em ee e e @e ea be s M e ea pm e e

(1) Als? completed before Notarj a'Artigny, on Tth December
CATTH . : _
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From the Conquest in'l760duntil the Treaty of Paris in 1763,
‘ Quebec was under military rule, but following the signing of the . .
- Treaty the King.in.a Pfoclamation had promised4 |

A “that as soon as the state and circumstances of the -
said colonies (1.e. Quebec, East Florida, West Florida and
Grenada) will admit thereof they (i.e. the prospective '
governors) shall summon and call general assemblies within
the said governments respectively in such marmer and form
as is used and directed in those colonies and Provinces An o
America which are under our immediate government . . .. .

. + » - and in the meantime, and until such Assemblies
can be called as aforesaid, all Persons inhabiting in or
resorting to our said Colonies may confide in our Royal
Protection for the engoyment of the Benefit of the Laws

- of our Realm of England." _ , a o

As may be readily understood the change of law that
.?f this brouaht about gave rise to serious difflculties between the
"old subJects", as the Engllsh settlers viere called and the.A:
o new subjects ,as the Prench Canadians vere called . | |
" . v o Though the French Canadians accepted the English
criminal law which was more 1enient than the French they objected
to the. introduction of the common law of England, particularly
_to 1mprisonment for debt, and to the administration of justice. o
_by Judges who neither spoke nor understood their language o
The "old subjects”, on the other hand while favouring -
the_English law which'they understood, were understandably :
impatient of the delays‘in.implementing the promise of a general
‘assembly.v This,;howe&er, must have been'a’little interest to the
new suOJects who as Roman Catholics were ineligible'to.hold

office or to serve as Jurors.

This was the political atmosphere which prevailed in

the‘early years of de Montmollin's ministry in Quebec.

.
.



It was well known “het'the Governor favoured the

| restoration of the French civ1l 1aﬁ, thouvh his views as to the

‘ establishment of an Assenbly had no%t been made public.

- Soon after his arrival de Montmollin had,participated e

:in the preparationsOf_an Address by the Protestant Clergy and itS'ﬁ ef

'presentation,tozthe Governor. In it they eApressed their

'pleasure at his appointment as Chier Governor of the Prov1nce of

Quebec, adding.

"The mild and equal tenor of his administration as
Lieutenant Governor,; so consonant to the moderate and =
“1liberal spirit which marks the Briton and the Protestant,
gives them hope for the future happlness of His Magesty S
01d and New subjects." _ o

The Quebec Gazette of November 17“h' 1768' recordsfthat to this
Address the Governor "made suitable reoly o '

The task of reconcilina the widely divergent views 01

‘Athe 0ld and new subjects was one of no mean dlfflculty, and the

vast distance that separated the Governor and his officials in

' Quebec from the authorities in ILondon made communications bétween

~ them tediously.slow, and,so.prevented an early deoiSion-being

reached.i In'order'to overcome these difficulties Carleton, in a
letter to'Lord Hillsborough on March_lSth,’1769, wrote'thatt

" "for the clearer explanation of these (1) and many -
- other points relative to this Province as well as to settle
. Bome private affairs, T wish to go howe for a few months ..,", -

and added:

: "By being upon the spot with the King's servants I
..might clear up to them many points, and remove many -
~Difficulties, which, at this Distance, can neither be so
- thoroughly discussed or perfectly understood, as is- ~
necessary for the- King's Service, whose Interests, in Regard
- to the Province, I really be 1¢eve I could more effectually
promote and advance by a Re31d=nce of a few months in London,
thun of so many years in this Country." '

(1) The State of the 1aws and’the Administration of Justice.
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' It was December 1st, 1799, before Lord Hlllsborough
repljed pranting the Governor ieave “to zeturn to England and
it was only on August 9th, 770 that carleton embarked on the .
| voyvage home and thauccramahe announced by Proclamation 1n Quebec
that the adminlstration of the Prov1nce had- devolved upon him.

. During Carleton's absence agitation for an Assembly
jcostinued in Quebec. Cranahe, wrltlng on December 13th 1773,
to Lord Dartmouth (who had succeeded Lord Hillsborough as
Secretary of State for the Colonles in August L772), reported- :

" "about Six Weeks or two Months ago, a Mr. McCord
.from the North of Ireland, who settled here soon after
" - the Conguest, where he has picked up a very comfortable
Livelihood by the retailing Business, in which he is a
considerable Dealer, the Article of Spiritous Idquors
especially, summoned the Principal Inhabitants of this
Town, that are Protestants, to meet at a Tavern, where.
He proposed to them applying for a House of Assembly, and :
appointing a Commlttee of eleven to consider of the Method .
~of making this Aoollcatlon, and to prepare and digest the =
matter for them.", o :
,And then Cramahé went on to recount the elforts made to encage
- some of_thelr fellow subjects at Montreal to second them, and to
eniist the support'of the-Canadians; and to transmit the |
"Petltlons which he had received. L
| The Quebec Petltlon bore the 51gnatures of Peter
' Fargues - who served as banker to de Montmollln - and of John |
}Renaud, who was de Montmollin‘s 1riend but sign*ficantly the
- Rector hlmself, whose stipend was paid by the Crown, played no
part whatever 1n the proceedings. ’
Uthe this agltatlon for a gener al Assembly was going

on in Quebec, to the SOuth the colonists were reacting more

violently to the policies of the British government by such
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episodes as the capture and burnino by Rhode Islanders of the}'-
schooner "Gaspe" and. by the better known Boston Tea Party.

But finally, after long delajs, a decision was at last
taken, nd on May 2nd 1774, The Quebec Act was 1ntroduced in the‘iidr
House of Lords. At the end of the month it was. submltted to the .
House of Commons and voted some two weeks lat Prepared 1n4 |

such a way as to pive eerct in large measure to the recommendations :

thlCh Carleton had made, the Act provided that in all matters of

controversy relative to property and civil rlghts resort shall be o

had to the laws of Canada as the rule for the decision of* the p'

same“, and, declaring that it was. "at present lnexpedient to call -

‘an Assembly",-f a view which Carleton held strongly if privately ~-

made provision for the appointment5of‘a Council. And,'SO'as to.,‘

h'give the Canadians the right to be members, the Act expressly

relieved persons'professing the'religion‘of the Church of Rome o
from the necessity of taking the oath required by 'the'Test' Act.

_ The new statute also authorized the Crown to make

' provision out of "the accustomed Dues and Rights" for the '

encouragement of the Protestant religion and for the maintenance

and supoort of a Protestant clergy.

Hls mlssion accompllshed General Carleton 1eft England :

about the mlddle of July.~ During his stay he had marrled Lady

5,Maria, a daughter of his great personal frlend the Earl of

"Efflngham, and she, w1th the two children who ‘had been born to

them, accomoanled her husband. After a voyage lasting more than_'

two months they.reached_Quebec on September 18th where they were

/.
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Though the Governor soon after his return to Quebec,

| reported (1) to the British authorities that he had had the

sauisiaction of finding His MaJest 's Canadian SubJects "impressed

-'with ‘the strorgest sense of Tne K ‘g s great Goodness towards them_'
~in the 1ate Act of Regulation for ,he Government of this Province"{f

’”and that "A11. Ranks of 'People anonast them vied with eaoh other’ je

in testifyinv their Gratitude and Resoect"' committees of His B

x‘ Magesty's Old SUOJerS in November 1774 were meeuing to prepare :

a Petition for une repeal of the Act. de Montmollin's two'

‘friends, John Renaud and Peter Fargues, . were among those who

. signed the Petition, and Peter Farvues was particularly active in

the discussions between the Quebec and Montreal Committees.
Despite the unrest both in Montreai and Quebec de

Montmollin - as related earlier -iwent ahead with the purchase‘

-of thewhOuse'and property on de'Buade Street and with the

alterations required'to make it sditable_for the use of upper

storeys by himself and his family,'and for the‘occupation'of'the

ground floor by his tenant; "and by\the early spring he was

~ safely ensconced in his new premises, there to remain for many .

years.

- To the old colonies the news of the'passing Of the

"_Ouebec Act was, as one eminent historian (2) has remarked "*ike
Ca charge of elec»ricity The esuablisnmentAof the Roman B
‘Catholic religlon, or popery, as‘they considered'it; and of

_arbitrary:government in the north,‘revived the terror

(1) His letter of September 23rd, 1774, w11l be found in
- Constitutional Documents, Vol. II, p. 583.

(2) A. L. Burt. The 0ld Province of Quebec, p. 206.



e et ot s e 122 e A S 1t o e e e 4 it i+ 4 v+ @ et e v

of bygone days and may even have magnified ﬁﬁeir feelinge'ef -
a’arm France; wﬁen she'had been.in possessioﬁ'of Canada, hadﬁ
beeq able to strike only in the ”ear, whikanow Britain could
’autack both front and rear. Many Americans feared thet.their_'{-'
'cause-would be hopeless unless they could'pfevent'Britain'fremetf
.vusihg'Canada against them. This WaS’why they ihvadedlthe e
:_countryin1775 o . |
With the Spring came news that active hostilltles
'had'bfoken out. - Ticonderoga and Crown P01nt:on Lake Champlein_51 
wers seizeé by_the‘rebels early in May,'and‘soen‘éfter the ';f‘ o
" only armed vessel 6n the lake was also‘captured'by}them. . The
ASLtuatlon in Quebec was far from secure. Carleton, upon ﬁls
'._return from England had been mev by an urgen demand from .

General “Gage for relnforcemenuo, and had promptly despatched -

-'_'tWC regiments to'New York,‘ieaving feW'troops under his own

‘*conmand : On learnlng of the fall of Liconderova and Crown.'
Point Carleton fortnwithckspatched to Su. John's ‘all the
‘1sonlers he had in Quebec except a few recruits, and himseif
‘set off to‘Montreal where he proclaimed'martial law.

- Some weekslleter, having done whatewaé poesible
to orgeniZe the'defence of Montreal, tﬁe Govefnor retﬁrded
'to‘Quebee ih mid-July. There, oqu a few da Je later, on July
Ejrd, his wife gave birth to a son, the;r third,child;
| De Montmollin was asked to officiate at thelchristening. His
register contaihs‘the following entry: : |
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Date - .-Father' - Mother Child!s Name Godfathers .
' ' g , and Godmothers .

1775, Aug. 20th Guy Carleuon Marie : Chrlstopher Thos. Connolly,E

Governor of - - L Christopher Carle
Canada, etc. ‘ o - . Lady Louisa Cmnol
' Co . : S -_LadJ F*anc.s Howal

N.B. This child was born at the Chateau St Louls, July the '
23rd 1775." : . -

About the same‘time‘de Montmollin received his new

- commission. The Quebec Act had revoked and cancelled after .

st May 1775 all commissions to judges and other offioers, S0

_*hat a new comm1331on was 1ssued to de Montmollin. ‘Dafed at

the Court of St James the seventh day of April, 1775, it-

'451gnif1ed the Royal Will and Pleasure that de Montmollin be:

~ collated and admitted to the "Church of Ouebec , but it did

not - as hls earlier commlssion had done - grant him “all

rights, dues, profits and priv*leges thereunto belonging R

.'These words, to whlcn Carleton bsd obgected seven years )

earlier, were carefully omitted and his Commission admltted

“him to the "“Church of Quebec" and not to "the Churchvand Parish

~ of Quebec".

However, whatever de Montmollin's feelings may have

" been with respect to his new commission, he rust at least

have derived'some satisfaction from the fact that the Instructions‘

.to the-Governor(l) declared it to be the Royal Intention that

certaln annual Salaries and Allowances were to be discharged

'and paid, and particularly & 200 per annum each to four Ministers

(1) Constitutionél Documents, Vol. II. pp. 594-614
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of the Protestant Church |

| The relatlve 1mportanhe of de Montmollln's stipend f'
may be.gudoed by the fact that six Judges were eacn to receive.?;fu
. lL5OO each, and two schoolmasters £100 each - | ‘: |

" Pollowing the first meeting of the Leglslative Councll B
fon August 17th and the christening of his son, Carleton again 1-_
}»set off for Montreal, in order to be nearer to the scene'of B
'hostilltles i o R .

It is of 1nterest to note at this point that in 1775 o
there was only a  somewhat 11m1ted network of roads | There was '
<'on the north 51de of the St Lawrence a hlghway leadlng from '
‘Quebee to}Montreal through Three Rivers? whlle.on the South '

‘side another‘road led from Levis = oppositeAQuebec JZto St..
Lambert, opposite'Montrealr"This road passed through Sorel,
“at the mouth of the Richelieu river,fand'from there a road
followed'the.weSt.bank‘of that river to St.tJohn's and south-
vward to LakelChamplain. This lake,'except in‘thepspring and"
autuhn When'ice conditions made it impaSSable, afforded - a
Lcommunication uith New.York'and the'colonies to'the south.
Carleton at Montreal nust have been surprised to
learn that the Americans under Arnold vere 1nvadlng Quebec
by following the Qiff icult route of tne Kennebec river ard the
.valley'of the  Chaudiere. As General Montgomery was approachiné '
| over the tradltlonal route,'the oaly course for Carleton to
'ffollow was to return to Quebec, which proved to be a hazardous

undertaking as_by this time the rebels had already reached Sorel.
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| _ Arnold reached Levis on November 8th Just before
Carleton left Montreal and by the end of that month Arnold and

.~ Montgomery had Joined forces and Carleton had successfully -

; returned to Quebec to reorganize the slender forces that were

 The attac& on Quebec was delayed untll December 313t

- At early hour Arnold attacked the Lower Town at its north end

while Montgomery was to proceed along the foot of the cliff 3

and penetrate the southern extremity of the Lower Town

The attack was a connlete fallure. Montgomery_and a |
number of his men were shot down as they approached the Pres dea.

Ville, the entrance to the Lower Town, and those who followed

 him quickly deserted Arnold fared but little better. Belore

the vanguard of his men reached ‘the Sault au Matelot they

encountered a barricade across the narrow way, and before they

‘7realized their predicament'they were attacked from behind and’

- forced to surrender.

de Montnollln must have been relleved that he no |

'.,longer'lived in his former house on rue du Sault au Matelot,

, | .
though the period of the siege must have been an anxious time -

for him and his wife, with their three sons all under fourteen:

It was'he who was called upon to perform the burial service for.

General Montgomery;

An American prisoner relates that Montgomery's body

" remained in the house of Gobert, the carpenter,tonvSt. Louis

Street, for three days, and tnen during the night of January.
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Lth, 1776 "the coffin covered by a pall, surmounted by transyerse°'

swords was borne by men. The regular. troops, particularly that fine

- body of men, the Seventh Regiment, wlth reversed arms and scarfs on

the: left elbow, accompanied the corpse to. the grave" (l)

Montgomery was buried near the St. Louis gate at thei,.'

‘foot of the road leadinc to the Citadel, and de Montmollin read the

burial service° Stranoe to say there is no entry in hlS register

v‘to record this burial, nor is there. in his register any other entry.
| related to those who lost their 1ives in the fighting on the eve of -
'the New Year 1776.. N

de Montmollin's pOSition in. Quebec must have glven himho

some cause for anxiety from time to time. . He must have realized

. how unfounded were the expectations of those who in the earlier

days of the colony had optimistically looked forward to massive s

‘conversions ‘of the French Canadians,_ He must also have been fully "

conscious of his ouwn lnabillity to attract the English ProtestantS'to -

“his ministrations, and the fact that the Protestants still had no

'church of thelr own, or at least no church for their exclusive use,

rmast have been a source of great disapp01ntment for him

The existence of a. small congregation of dissenters in

: St. Andrew's Church, with ‘the Rev. George Henry, a former military
_ chaplain, as its pastor, must always have competed for the attention

of de Montmollin's parishioners, and have been & source of'disquiet

to him personally°

In these circumstances 1t 1s not "urprising that

(1) P. G. Roy, "Les cimetitres de Québec", p. 255;<




de Montm01lin'was Jealous'of any posSibTe intrusion upon his

position as Rector of Quebec. Thls is the only inference that may“ '

be drawn from ‘his relation= with the Rev. Iewis’ Guerry.

Rev. Guerry, having been adnitted to Holy Orders, had

' been recommended to Lord Dartmouth, the Secretary of State, early -

in March 1775 by the Bisnop of London, who had promised to give‘
- him a. Jicense when the government in London was ready to appoint

'hlm.' The government acted very promptly, and on April 2nd, 1779,

iLOrd Dartmouth issued a. warrant instructing Governor Carleton to f”

adnmit Mr - Guerry to "such church and parish within the Province of
Quebec in America not al ready having a Protestant Minister"(l)
It is not known when Guerry reached Quebec, but is

' 1likely that it was in the summer or autumn of 1775,, It seenea to

have been the intention that he should be appointed to the Parish ,

of Sorel but by the time he arrived in Quebec the Province ‘had -
- been invaded by the Americans, and Sorel was in their‘hands.

As the Earl of Plymouth sald some years later, when he

wrote to the Secretary of State on. Guerry's behalf on February 6th,. .

17835, this left him "nothing to do ‘but to assist of his own nood- :

willi the present Rector of Quebec who it is well known at that

"place, seemed- far from w1shing for assistance and declared that -

J
de Montmollin must have realized that if he ‘allowed

he wanted 1t not" (2).

Guerry to play any sort of part in the activities of the church

(1) P.A.C. - S. Vol. 15, p. 113.
(2) P.A.C. - Q21, pp. 64-66.




37.

atlQuebec, his'onn position.could easily be Jeopardized by someone':
'vaSSGSSlng complete familiarity with the English language.' However '
thatever cause for concern de Mcntmollin felt soon disappeared for,
- after the siege of Quebec had been raised the Governor, Sir. Guy ,'_
Carleton, granted Guerry leave to return to England for twelve months.
| :It may be noted in passin that oack in. England Guerry had no . '

'difficulty in obtainina yearly renewals of his leave, which enabled

lhim without doing any service in Canada to continue to receive his
" annual stipend of & 200, Influential friends, such as the Earl of
:Plymouth no doubt faCilitated the arranfement which continued -
until 1784 when Guerry was allowed to exchange his "benefice" in :
Canada with the Rev. Philip Toosey. | |

_ The arrival in Quebec in June 1778 of the Rev. John

" Doty, tneLChaplain of the Royal Regiment of New York, probably

' aroused in de- Montmollin's mind less misaivings than Guerry - with

no attachment to a parish - had. done, yet it seems in retrosp et

- that Doty was indirectly responsible for the ultimate retirement o

of de Montmollin as Rector of the Church and Parish of Quebec. o
' Doty, a native of Albany, had been ordained in England
_ in 1770 and had been Rector first of* Peckskill 'N. Y., and later i
' of Schenectady. Because of his loyalty- to the British Crown he-
“had been arrested in the summer of 1777 and held prisoner, ‘but he 4-.
had been allowed to leave the country to go to Montreal where he .
had been appointed Chaplain to the Royal Regiment of New York

When the regiment was moved to Quebec in June 1778, Doty accompanied
it and remained there for three years or more. - Then having obtained

a year's leave of absence, granted rather reluctantly by Governor
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v,Haldimand who was: opposed to the continued absence of chaplains, he

" had sailec for England in October 1781.

Doty, it would seem, did not have such influential

- friends as Guerry, and it was necessary for him to return to Canada.
~He spent the following summer in- Wontreal, but having somehow or Cf

‘other secured an extension of his leave he again sailed for England

where he- arrived late in November of that year. .

Upon his return to the old country, Doty was asked by

the Society for the Propagation of the Gospel to report on conditions
in Canada, and on January 15th, 1783, he wrote what he entitled
| "Minutes of the ‘State of the Church in Canada“ (1) which reads as

follows H

"1, The Canadian papists (which are very numerous) are in

- general a well disposed people; attached indeed to theilr own

- religion, yet inclined to think well of Serious Protestants,
and in many respects open to conviction.» ‘ L

- The -French Protestants in Canada are, at this time about .
.lO or 12 in number and probably never exceeded 20; while, on
the contrary, the English Protestants immedlately after the
conquest of the country amounted to more than 10 times as
many; and are now estimated at no less than 6000 beside the

jtroops.»

3. To the former of these, three French clergymen were sent
out by government soon after the peace of 1763, appointed to .
tneir respective parishes (viz. Quebec, Troils Riviéres and ‘
_Montreal) by a Royal Mandate, with a stipend of % 200 sterliing
per annum, pald to each of them out of the Revenues of the
Province, besides which one of them is Chaplain to the
‘garrison where he resides (2). _

U, Two of thege gentlemen (natives of Switzerland and’
- doubtless of ability in their own language) perform, as
- well as they can, in English; but there is not one English

clergyman settled in all the Province (excepting an
'independent Minister (3), who has a small conoregation at

(1) To ve found in Pascoe's Digest of S P.G. Records, pp. 140 141,
(2) Rev. D. C. De Lisle at Montreal. | '
(3) Rev._George Henry‘at St. Andrew's Church.
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Quebec where he has resided for some years past, nor is there
a single Protestant church, the Protestants being obliged to
make use of Romish chapels.

-5, The paucity of French hearers hath so far set aside the -
performance of Divine Service and preachling in French that
during four years! residence Iin Canada the wrlter of these
Minutes doth not remember to have heard of four sermons in

that 1anguage.

_6. Catechizing, however important in its consequences, is a =
practlice ' unknown in that country; and the sad effects of .
'so great an omission are visible - too many of the rising .
generation fall an easy prey to Popery, Irreligion and :
Infidelity. L

7. The evening -Service of the Church of England is not e
performed; the weekly prayer days, -Saints' Days, etc. are’
totally neglected; and the Sacrament of the Lord's Supper
administered not above 3 or & times in a year. at Montreal,
not so often at Quebec and not at all at Trois Rivieres.-

8. The most ‘destitute places are Sorrel (! ) and St. John's.
The former is a flourishing town, pleasantly situated on a
point of land, at the conflux. of the Rivers Sorrel and

-8t. Lawrence, It is the key of Canada from the southward -
and bids fair to be in time one of the largest places in the
province. The number of Protestant English famllies there :
at present is about 40 besides the garrison, which is middling -

large, ete., ete. "

"It is not known what was the reaction of the church '

authorities in London to this report The conditions it portrayed
“were certainly far from encouraOing, and bore little resemblance to“

- the facts originally represented to the government that had led 1t

to appoint French- speaking clerics to the parishes of Quebec,

Three Rivers and Montreal. But the Soclety ltself could do very

“1little to improve.the situation, and even the Bishop of London

tvcould‘do 1ittle more than make reoresentations to the:government,

in London, which up to that time had shown a much less active

interest in the advancemant of Protestantism in Canada than in

‘ promoting harmonious relations with the French—speaking population;



Despite the discouraging conditions reported by Doty,
the Society asked him to return to the Provlnce and to serve as its’
' missionary at Sorel, and authorized the payment to him of a salary
of 'B 50 per annum<which must indeed have seemed to hin:yery‘small'
comoared to the‘L 200 per annum which the government was raying tdj7
each of the three French -speaking clergymen. Doty accordingly |
.~r°turned to Canada and having received the permission of Governoriﬁ'
‘Haldlmand proceeded to Sorel which he reached at the end of June
a78h. R o
. 1In the-meanwhile the‘Bishop of London requested the
"Rev Charles Mongan to . look into the State of the Churcn in Canada.
- It io not clear Just when Mr. Mongan reaoned Canada, but it appears“
that he spent a year in that province, and - to use his own words -
: he took every pains to make hinse11 acquainted witn that subgect
‘iUpon his return he transmitted particulars to his Lordshio, but the -
7vBishop's death happening soon afterwards prevented the 1atter from
maklng representations to the government. | |
| | Early in the following year (1786) both Mongan - who
ttseems‘to have been most anxlous to secure a,preferment 1n Canada fh
and Dr. Morice,'the,Secretary of the S.P.G., who had.heen Seeking
government assistance for the Soeiety's missionaries'in Canada,
made new-reoresentations‘to Lord‘Sydney, Secretary of.State

Mongan, writing from a London address on February le,:.v
1786 (l), referred to his hav1ng spenc a year in Canada at the
- request of the late Bishop of London, and explained that the . .

. (1) P.A.C., Q.26, pp. 20-21.
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o - Bishop's death had prevented ;

"those exertions he (i.e. the Bishop) intended, in showing
government the necessity of putting our Church upon a more
respectable footing in that country, and of sending out

- Ministers to the principal towns, who were likely to recover

" our religlon from that state c¢f disrepute into which it had

~fallen, thro! the unaccountable neglect of this country, in e
sending out clergymen totally unfit for the situauion in which '

they were placed.” .
‘ The next sentence of Mongan's letter is of interest
because it implies clearly that tne-"memorial“ which he enclosed

was not of his authorship. He continues :

A more particular description of these Gentlemen with a short
account of our Church affairs in Canada 1s contalned. in the
enclosed Extract of a memorial lately transmitted to bhiS '
Country with a hope of obtaining relief. "o

The rest of the 1etter urging a change in the situation,_
zimakes abundantly clear Mongan's desire for any preferment in : '

’ Canada.

. , The Memorial (1) dated 1st November 1785 and labelled
~ "The Present State of the Church of England and its clergy in Canada"

reads as follows :

AL Quebec the only Clerg an of the Church of England is a
very old Swedish (Swiss' Gentleman who cannot speak one word

- of plain English - in consequ:znce of which, and his unpopular
private conduct,  the English Inhabitants. at Quebec (which are
numerous & very respectable) zre deprived of Divine Service -~.
and the Minister an object of Contempt & Ridicule -

' At Montreal, the Case is the same - the Clergyman is also a
‘Foreigner, and speaks English so very unintelligibly that our
Church is totally neglected, notwilthstanding the English’ ‘
‘Inhabitants here are very numerous & respectable; but not
having a proper Minister of their own Church, are under the
Necessity of encouraging Presbyterian and other Sects; who,
taking advantage of the .neglected State of our religious '
: - Affairs in thls Country, are now pouring in from all quarters
0 ' of’ the Unlted States; and, of course, sowing the Seeds of that
o Disaffection to our Church &  Canstitution, which contributed
not a 1ittle, to the Loss of our other Colonies.

(1) P.A.C. - Q.26', p.59.
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. At Three Rivers - the Situation of our Church is still
more unfortunate, and may be Justly calltd shameful -~ for in
" addition to the Inabillity of the other Gentlemen ( n the
" performance of Divine Service with Decency & propriety) the
. Clergyman here, 1is that kind of Character, that wou!d disgrace
" the meanest Profession - He speaks English worse (1f possible)
than the other two, and was expelled (for some flagitious Acts)
~from a Community of Friars to which he belong'd, prior to his .
Conversion to our Religlon. : ] , A .

" This is the true & melancholy State of the Church‘of ,
England in Canada, and which (if permitted to continue so) it
needs no great share of penetratlion to foresee must soon be .
followed by the most unhappy political Consequences - 1aying

_all Moral Considerations out of the Question. - o
. Endorsed: Present State of the Church & Clergy in Canada -
| o © 1st Nov. 1785."

At the direction of Lord Sydney, Mongan's letter and its |

, encWOSure were sent to Sir Frederick Haldimand who having retired -
' as Governor-in- Chief of Canada had returned to 1ive in England

'i Sir Frederick's reply on March 8th, 1785 (l) was that though he
"believed that "some parts of it are consistent with truth" he was

~ satisfied that 1t was highly eaaggerated. The former Governor

evidently was underithe impression that the government_oi someone"

intended to blame him for the sorry state'of thehchurch in Quebec. o

- This 1s clear from his 1etter and from the entry of the same date'

in his diary (2). There he wrote (in French)
| - " ... that I had left things in the country as T had found
. them and that my feeling was that it would be sultable to send
it (the memorial) to Brigadier Hope (3) for clarification, etc.
I am much surprised that having been here for more than

a year during which nothing has been communicated to me they
. should wish to consult me now, no doubt in order to throw on -

(1) Haldimand Papers;”MG 21, B. 58.
(2) Haldimand Papers, MG 21, B. 231.
(3) Then Lieutenant Governor of Quebec (1785 89)
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me the'responsibility for all the changes 1t is proposed-to
make. Besldes I think that this memorial was done by the
Minister Dauté (Doty) with the advice and assistance of

“Hamilton (1) and Caldwell (2).' |
- Dr. Morice, upon his part, also put forward a paper, dated

_:hovember 1st 1786 endorsed "°tate of Religion in Canada", which N
.-z will be found in the Public Archives (p.A. Co - Q. 49, Pp. 3&3—349)

: Though this 1is anonymous, it seems clear that it was nothing more
| :than a rewrite of the earlier report made by Doty, with ninor
'.1 additions. Qnite clearly it was written in London by someone who R
Sy was not personally familiar with the facts...Thus it says_of de f‘-'A
}sMontmollin : v AR o

}“The French Minister at Qnebec, a reformed Jesuit o
cannot preach in English and *s very negligent in his duty.ﬁ

' This paper mentions tha "las -year" (1i.e. 1785) the
pARev. Mr. Toosey was sent in the place of Mr., Geary (Guerry)
'without being app01ntea to any settled place wherein‘to officiate' |
as.a clergyman®, and suggests that as he had no fixed employment - B
 and vas an Englishman he might be directed to officiate either at:

r_Quebec or Montreal or Trois Rivieres, wnere it is presumed that a ,

. - church ought to be built

o What was the practical effect of these representations by
the Rev. Mr. Monoan on the one hand, and the S.P.G. on the other9 |
df their'timeliness there can be little doubt for it seems clear
~that the government in London wes known to bhe givind active fi

: consideration to making changes in the administration of afxairs in -

(1) Previously Lt. Governor of Quebec, 1784-85, who having been
dismissed was replaced by Hope. -

(2) Colonel Henry Caldwell, a‘Legislative Councillor.



~ Canada. Sir Frederick Haldimand who had been back in Envland for
more than a year had not yet been‘replaced as GQovernor; Henry f‘_
Hamiiton‘who had been in charge:of affairs at Quebec since Haldimand'Cr
departure had been dismissed; and Brigadier Hope had - been appointed .
4dto succeed hinm as Lleutenant- Governor.. Rumours must_have_been
_:current that Sir Guy Carleton was to be re—appointedraS'Governorfj
.and Commander_inQChief._ indeed.in_Haldimand!s personalvdiarypthe
entry which nekt followa that‘in which he noted his'feelinga as to
"~ ILord Sydney's inquiry about church affairs in Canada recordg the'
1i fact that on Thursday, March 9th 1786, Brigadier MacLean (who
dined With him that dav) had shown him an article which had. appeared
_ on the previous day on the subgect of the Governor-Generalship
proposed for Carleton in which very valid reasons vere given mhy
" the proposal was most 111l-conceived. But, Haldimand notegd, "it would
‘ pase nonetheless": o U »
. | “"However,.the changes underhconsideration by thevauthorities
‘: seem to:have related entirely to temporal affairs. The Church'of"
'England in Canada may have been given some thought but the only
-action taken with respect to its activities was the approval of the
‘payment from provincial revenues of a modest stipend of L 100 each |
to the two missionaries at Sorel and Cataraqui, Messrs, Doty and
vStuart who had not been appointed to thelr charges by the

government but had been sent out or accepted by S.P.G. as its

. missionaries at these places.

The instructions to the new Governor, to be delivered to ':
him with his new commission, contained directions on ecclesiastical

. metters which were almost identical in terms with_those-that had
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" been given to Carleton after the adoption of the Quebec Act in 1775.
The only significant change which they embodied in relation to church
afPairs was the inclusion in the Salary List of the above mentioned i:
L provision for the two missionaries.' Curiously enough they are
- referred to in this 1ist as "Ministers of the Church- of England B
settled at Sorel and Cataraqui“, ‘whereas tbe others are referred to o
- as "Ministers of the Protestant Church";t, o o o
In the same instructions the right to appoint the‘i
R Protestant Clergy was Jealously retained by the Crown. The~incumbent
“had to have the recommendation of the Bishop of London, but thé
appcintment - the final decision - was to be the prerovative of His p
.i~MaJesty, as it had been since the Conquest It is important to
'v-bear this in mind, for it is quite ‘clear that no matter how fully
"persuaded the Bishop of London night be that an incumbent appointed‘
'by Royal Warrant was not discharging his duties, a change, that is |
a new appointment, could be made only by His. MaJesty himself This
.probably accounts for - tne fact that despite the unfavourable reports-
guoted above, ‘de Montmollin was 1eft undisturbed in his tenure as:"i
'Rector of the Church and Parish at Quebec. '
This seems a convenient point at wnich to return to Quebec »
.and to de Montmollin himself _ . . '
As has been noted earlier, de Montmollin in October 1774
"had bought the property on de Buade. Street and some time after had
- leased the groundAfloor to Louis Fremont. By his deed of_purchase
Ahe had nndertaken tolpay the balance of 2800 shillings in the course.
of the three years.following; with interest?at;fiﬁe‘per cent. The

Fremont lease provided only 600 shillings annually, so'that it



obviously was necessary for de Moncmollin himself to provide a good
part of the principal and no doubt it was necessary for him to do so
out of his annual stipend '
| He succeeded in ma&ine a payment on account of 720
N shillings soon after granting the 1ease to Fremont and an
"acquittance written at the foot of the deed of sale testifies that
that amount was paid to the vendors "in the sight and presence of -
the notary '. Then a 1itt1e over three years 1ater, on June 19th
1778, a further acquittance records the receipt by Mr. and Mrs._
| Guichaux of the remaining balance and interest paid this time . by
‘ Pierre Fargues, the merchant, for de Montmollin. It is interesting.
.to observe that in this deed the Gulchaux acknowledge_that the |
, ypayment.had been made}to them on June'4,‘so'that the formula'that
the anount was paid "in the siaht and presence of the notary" was
" not used | | |
» | The exact location of the de‘Buade.Street propertydis
" not indicated by the deed to de Montmoilin;' The description it
contained is admirably clear, but, apart from indicating_that thef‘
-;property fronted both'on de Buade<and éte. Annelstreets, it does
not establishdjust where the property was,in‘relation to the
.nearest cross streets,v'Happiiy, further information‘in the form -
of a-plan makes.it possible to determine’where the property was
situdted., 1In 1782,'Jacques_Denechaud, one of the churchwardens-of
Quebec - a Roman Catholic of codrse - prepared a most'interesting
plan which shows the varlous streets'and thoroughfares - de Buade,~
du Tresor, des Jardins and the Place du Marché - and an elevation

of the buildings - residences, coavent and ‘churches - which fronted
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'on.them. Then, on the roofs is written the name of the owner or
the designation of the building itself - This plan.shows that de
fMonumollin's.property was the most important-in the hlock'between |
'-_dn.Trésor and‘desJardinS'Streets, and looked orer the‘market square '
“‘and the church which is now the Basilica. | -
A coloured print of Quebec in 1832 shOWS the building
still standing, easily recognized by the shaliower, almost square
..windows of its third_storey, .and the census of Roman Catholic _ |
'parishioners; made in 1792 shows-the.honse to berNo' lO'and'j
records the presence of three domestics in the service of "Mr.

'Wontmollin"g all of them communicants
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 Not long after ‘de Montmollin discharged his debt to the .
i Guichaux, the new Governor General,.Frederick Haidimand, reached
Quebec.”,de Montmollin must have had somewhat mixed‘feelings at
| the time. Though Carleton, who had been xnighted in recognitlon
| of his distinguished service in ‘the defence of Quebec against the :
,Americans, had steadfastly refused to hand over the Recollet v
| Church to him, de Montmollin had christened tvo of the Governor's
children, and seems to have manifested a certain sympathy for thel
- minister. HlS departure must have been a cause of regret for de
Montmollin and many others who knew him, but the arrival of
Haldimand must have been a source of pleasure, for he too was a
lnative of Switzerland '

Haldimand was also a contemporary of de Montmollin having

been born on August llth; 1718, at Yverdun in. the canton of
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Neuchftel, about 10 miies‘away from NeuchZtel itself. He hadlbeen
a.professional soldler heving:served.in tne Sardinian, the Prussian
and the Dutchjarmies before Joining the British After distinguished
service in Florida, New York anc Canada, he had been promoted to

the rank of General in America on January 1st 1776 and then
iduring a visit toinurcpe in the-folloaing year;while~at iverdnn

' had been offered and had accepted the position of Governor and o

. Commander in Chief in Canada.

Tbough Haldimand‘left 2 voluninous'correSpondence,
occupying more than 200 volumes 1n the national archives, the only
o reference to de Montmoliin which they containcis the,letter te him
.from'General Gage already«mentioned. In conseqnence there is ne u
record of his relations with de Montmollin and we can only Anfer
that nothino arose. that made it necessary for the Governor to
‘communicate with the authorities in Icndon concerning either the‘
: Rector or the church which was used by the Protestant community

-in Quebec.
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The records of _the notaries who practised in the City of
Queoec during the years of de Montmollin's minisctry, and later
during the years of his retirement‘afford some interesting informa-
‘tion about him. IXf the deeds‘relating to the de Buade Street
oproperty are'excepted, the first deeds tO»whichvhe was a party are
| those executed before Notary Berthelot d'Artigny, in 1781. 1In |
May of that year, de Montmollin entered into.two transactions.

. The first was a mortgage loan of & 100 which he made to Merie
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.Magdelaine de Gaudin de la Potterie, widow of Frangois Clesse,

a carpenter, the int erest on 1t beino payable at six per cent;
while ‘the second was the purchase from Robert Willcocks of a parcel
of vacant land 146, 5 feet in width on St. Louis Street, |
Unfortunately the 1att°r deed is not to be found in the notary's
records, so that it is not known what. price de Montmollin paid or

undertook'to pay for it.

| /A year later de Montmollin made another loan, this time'tf
| to Noel Vezina, who undertook to relmburse P 25 currency of the
Province, the equivalent of "dix huit Guinées et deux portugalses,
‘ comptées, nombrées et reellement del*vrees,‘a sue et en presence

} des notaires .' The value of the gulnea appears to have varied-

the portugaises" were probably the Johannes of Portugal which.

B - hao a value ‘each of L L, Canada currency.
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_ " In each of the three transactions’noted above;'de'
Montmollin was paying out money, either as a lender or as a buyer,_,
and 1t may be inferred that the aogregate amount involved was not
‘very large.' It is, therefore, somewnhat surprisinv to find him as
the borrower of rather substantial anounts in the transactions ‘
which_next followed.' In June 1783, de Montmollin borrowed L 300 '_
from Jonn Saul,‘a master baker (1),lg1ving as~secur1ty,a first |
| hypothec.(or.nortgage).on-his de Buade Streettpropertv; and
vobliging himself to repay it in three years "in go1d~or in silver
- only notwithstanding any change of money<whatever".n Then.Jﬁst-a
~ few months later,’he borrowedlaAfnrther 5L 300 from William Brown,

(1) Saul had been, with Mrs. de Montmollin, a god-parent of the
' school masterts son. S : S s :



a printer, promising to repay‘it less than a yearllater andA

| mortgaging as security~both the de Buade Street,property and'the

vacanu 1and on St. Louis Street, which latter property was free,'
of all encumbrances ex cept the "lods et ventes" ? a mutation fee -

on the purchase price In the second tr ansaction,_Mrs de

'Montmollin obliged herself JOlnulj and severally with her nusband

for the repayment orf the 1oan, and the deed contains their
declaration that the money was to be used for “their particular g

affairs".

What was the purposefbr which these loans were e;t‘f.'ected‘>

It can. only be assumed that de Moatmollin and his wife undertook

these obligations in order.to establish in‘business their two sons;'.

" Frederick and Samuel, who at this time must have been anout 20 and'
'18 vears of -age respectively. i”houoh it 1is not certain that the~ '
"young men had engaged in business as early as the end of 1783, it
'_is a fact that less than four years later they were parties to a
‘contract before Nicolas Pinguet, the Notary, (on April 2nd, 1787)

: under which Pierre Edouard Debarats, a merchant of Quebec, acting

for himself and his father who 1ived in Three Rivers, acknowledged :

to owe to Samuel and Frederick de dontmollin, described as "{raders",

3 714 14 5%, the value of goods supplied by them.
It may be inferred that de Montmoliin's two sons achieved

some success in their endeavours, for. th° loans from Brown and Saul

vwere duly repald.
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‘ in the.summervdf’178ﬂg'Lwo“evehts occurred which ought
to be noted, On June 12th after a passage which lasted eight weeks,
the Rev. John Doty returned to Quebec. As, however, his destination

was Sorel, his arrival would scarcely have caused de Montmollin any

, anx1ety. lndeed his stay was of snort duration, for, havinv
r7fpresented to Governor Haldimand a letter from Dr..Morice of the.
"} S.-PO'G;'confirming his‘appoiﬁtment‘as the Soeiety'slmissionaryz

~at Sorel, he was permittedaby the Geverner to cdntihue'on~his

Joﬁrney.' 1 , _
B Doty, writing on Septemoer 30th to report his safe ,"v

arrlval and to tell of the stafe of aflairs 1n Sorel advised

| br, Morice that_he was paylng 4 pence-a qaart forvmilk, a shilling.

~ ‘a pound for butter, 3-t9'6 pence for meat. In common with the-

Lojalists, he added, he was drawing provisions from the Kiﬁg‘s

stores; otherwise cost of.iiving would be beyond his purse,
.'.Laﬁer;'in Septeﬁber, deernor Haldimand was.adVised.by

the ReV"Lewis Guerry that he had obtained.from'the King permission.

to“ekchange his benefice in Canada with the Reverend Pﬁilip Teesey.

whem the King had had the‘goddness to name in-his place (1).

Toosey Uas not able to -come at once, and wrote‘in June to the

_Governor saylng that he could not saill for Quebec tili the following"

sprlng, and asking if a church would be bullt (2).
These letters from Guerrf and Toosey reached the Governor

towards the. nidole of September - unat from Guerry wrluten from

- Stoke Prior in England on April 21ch is endorsed "Reqﬁ»lB sep." -

(1)  P.A.C. - Haldimand B75-2, p. 82.

(2) P.A.C. - Haldimand B75-2, p. 1l4.
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_and‘not iona befOre Haldimand's.inpendiné departure for-Englandj

There is no record of any action taken by Haldimand and it may be
‘.assumed that havinc become accustomed to tne absence from Canada
of Mr. Guerry and other holders of appointments within the gifu of
: the Crown, he did not consider it necessary to: determine what Mr, »1
- Toosey would do wnen and if he arrived, or where he would do it B
-Nor is it possible‘to ascertaln whether de Montmollin became aware

. of the ex change of benefices and the possibillty that Mr Toosey

’jfwoqu come to Ouebec.‘
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| Tnough the event has ne real signlfiCance, 1t is of
interest to record at ‘this point that when the Hon. Thomas Dunn,. ,:
| a prominent merchant and a member of' the Executive Councll of the.;
Province, was leav1ng for England a letter was presented to,him. |
',Dated 15th June 1785, it reads as follows: |

. "As we understand your. afiairs call you to England in
a short time, permit us to assure you of our sincere good
wishes for your health and safety, during your absence fron
us. . .

The Justice and,moderatidn, with which you have filit'd
the most respectable Offices, during your long residence in
this country have Justly secured to you our lasting esteem
and veneratlon, '

Your c¢onduct on all occasions, whether in a public or
private capacity, has manifested the Man of sound wisdom,
rectitude and benevolence; and the goodness of your heart
has been universally felt, by the kindest offices of
iriendship and humanity. ' ~

Our minds beind strongia Impressed with the 51ncerest
‘sentiments of attachment and esteem for you, we cannot help
lamenting your departure, vwnich will be felt and regrétted
as a public loss; and we beg leave %o assure you, that we
shall consider yoar return as a blessing restored to ‘this
Province., :
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Ue sincerely wish youpa happy voyave to Envland, vhere,
we flatter ourselves, your we2ll known virtues and long
_ servjces will procure you a .cordlial reception.
Ve have the Honor to be, sincerely and respecﬁfully,
- SIR,
1'Your obedient and most humble'servants, B

- To the Hon. Thomas Dunn, Eso,,
Quebec." .

»: This letter, published in the Quebec Gazette of June |
23rd, 1785, was slgned by 135 persons, including de Montmollin,}__‘.
John Renaud; and John Frederic de Monumollin,_thelr signatures
' being grouped together. The. signauure of John Samuel de Montmollin i
'does not'appear;_probably because he had not autained 21 years of _i
'hage.j' - | | o |

' In July of the same yea”, de Montmollin vis1ted "Mal Bay
and St. Paul's Bay in order to bcotize three children.» The first
baptism was performed on July lk‘h 1785, at Mal Bay where de
Montno]lin christéned the naturaI oaughter of John Nairne
i Lweutenant Colonel of the 53rd Reglment (1), he god—parents being‘
‘Malcolm Fraser, Captain of the 84th Regiment and Magdalene Nairne,,;_
the sister of the child. v | |

It would seem that Capv. Fraser had made the arrangements“
for de Montmollin's visit for tniee days 1ater, on July 17th the
-R“CuOP christened two of the ch11dren of George Chaperon at St.

Paul's Bay, and Malcolm Fraser was god-father to both of them.
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(1) John Nairne had participateo in the siege and capture of
Quebec under WOlf :



C At the end of July, the Rev. Philip Toosey and his
‘ fanily arrived at Quebec, from London, on the ship “Cnarlotte"
after a voyage of fifty-five days. According to the Rev. H. C.
stuart (1) : | o B

"As Mr. Doty had been aopointed to Sorel, and there
~were no vacancles in any of the parishes, and no new ones
ready to be established, it was arranged that Mr. Toosey

- should take up some English work at Quebec. We have no
‘means of knowlng whether Mr. de Montmollin still declined
to recelve assistance from English clergymen;. but we do
not find Mr. Toosey's name in the Quebec parish register
Vuntil 1789." (2) ‘ .

_ This account and the fact that Toosey's register opens f”
onlv in 1789 strongly suggest that de Montmollin's attitude towards

Toosey was the same as it had been in the case of Lew1s Guerry,

- who simply was not wanted.

| Reference has already been madeito=the appbintment of
- Sir Guy Carleton as Captain General and Governor in Chief. in and
over the Province of Quebec and to the instructions given him.
i.Just before leaving England, he was raised toiﬂmapeerage es Baron :
Dorchester, and after a long voyace reached Quebec on October 23rdv
1786. The new Governor was accompanied by William Smith who had
formerly been Chlef Justice in the Province of New York, and who ’ i
was to be the new Chief Justice of' Quebec. ' (
) Up to this time, the Crown, as the Supreme Head of the.
Cnurch on earth Within the Brit*sh Dominiono, had reserved to
,‘ 4_ | (1.) Author of "The Church of England in Canada, 17591793"'

. (2) 1Indeed thsz first entry in Toosey's Register 1s a baptism
performed on July 10th, 1789 : ‘ '
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1tself the-ekclusite prerogative‘ofuappointing the clergy tc serve
in Canada, and no .bishop had been appointed On August 1st, 1?87,
the King constituted the Province of Nova Scotia to be a Bishop's |
See to be called the Blshopric of Nova Scotia and 1its dependencies,v
and appointed Dr. Charles Inglls to be Bishoo thereof. The BishOp
was to be subordinate to the auuhority of the Archbishop of

" Canterbury in the same manner as the English Bishops of the ""
Province of Canterbury. The King notified. the Archbishop that _
“the See of Nova Scotia had been founded and that Dr._Inglis‘had*:
lbeen appointed thereto, and required the Archbishop to'consecrate'

' Charles Inglis Bishop of Nova Scotia. , o | |
-On the same date Bishop Inglis was, by a Turther
Commission, authorized to exercise ecclesiastical Jurisdiction in

"the Provinces of Quebec and New Brunsnick and the Island of"
Newfoundland, to 1nstitute clergymen totﬁmzbenefices, to license
dcurates, to appoint Commissaries to. perform these functions, etc. .

, In consequence of the Bishopt's appointment new
'instructions dated August 25th, 1787, were sent to Inrd Dorchestcr,-
.advising that the Bishop had been granted full power and authority
_-to exercise "Splritual and Ecclesiastical Jurisdiction" in Quebec
.New Brunswick and Newfoundland enjoining the Governa?to glve .

_all fit support and countenancef to the Bishop, and forwarding
copies,Of his'commissions for registration in the public records
of thesprovinces | The same instructions expressly reserved toA »
the Governor and to all others, to wnom 1t might lawfully be lono,
" the "Patronage and Right of Presentation to Benefices" but the

person so presented was to be inscituted by the Bishop orlhis '

Commissary.
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- Following the receipt of these 1nstructions, and
presumably in response to a request for 1nformation, Lord Dorchester
reported fully on October 24th 1787. His letter (l) to Lord

Sydney, cretary of State for the Home Department reads as
follows : ” ) _.’ . |
‘_"Quebec 24th October'l787
My Lord - B |
I inclose a List of the Protestant Clergy in this
Province upon which Your Lordship will percelve two Names
"with Salaries of £ 50 a year - besides the six whose

" Salaries are stated in the 61st Article of His Majesty's
Instructions -

_ I found it Advisable S0 far to~comp1y with the repeated
Applications of the Numerous Settlements of loyalists at
late New Oswegatchie, and Cornwall late New Johnstown,

- (where these Gentlemen are stationed) as to make these

"allowances towards enabling them to Maintain a Clergymsn
at each of those places, informing them at the same time,

- - that they Must Consider it only as a temporary bounty of -
Government in consideration of the infant state of theilr

. Settlements, a Continuance of which ought to be expected no
~longer, than their own inability could justify the necessity :
of such a charge upon the Mother Country - '

- Mr. Bethune formerly was Chaplain to the 84th regiment -
'and I understand 1t was General Haldimand's intention to
appoint Mr. Bryan Chaplain to a Corps commanded by Lieutenant
Colonel Jessup - They are both gentlemen of good character,
and entitled to attention as loyalists, who have suffered ;
much by the late War - C -

: Mr. Bethune's being a Member of the Church of Scotland
will I apprehend not be deemed an objectlon, as the Settlement,
in which he officiates, is composed of people of. that Church,
‘who particularly solicited his appointment from Personal
Attachment and confidence -

Mr. Langhorne has been sent out this Summer, as a
-MlSSlOHaPy to the second or third townshlp near Cataraqui,
with an allowance of L 50 from the Society for propagatinv'-
"the Gospel

(1) This letter will be found in the Public Arch ves of Canada,
' Q. 28, pp. 161-4, o S '
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' acted as tutor to Lord Dorchester's children.
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- Besldes these, there are two Persons in the Proﬁince,
who profess themselves Clergymen of the Eplscopal Church,

. one a Mr. Scott who formerly Acted as Deputy Chaplain to
'the 34th Reglment, and now officiates to a small number of

persons at William Henry late Sorel, who support him by

- private subscriptions, the other a Mr. Lucas, sald to be
- son to the late Mr. Lucas of the living of Newry in Ireland,

who- came into the Province this Summer without any introduction,

‘or fixed design, and is, as far as I know not resident at any

particular place.

Neither of these have Allowances from Governments, and_”

'are both represented to me in a manner to remove all idea

of placing them, though there have been several Applications
from the New Settlements for.Clergymen of the Church. of
England - - It has been particularly said of Mr. Scott that
he. is of a turbulent unprincipled character, and causes _
much uneasiness and dissention in the settlement .where he

resides,

As I am on this SubJECu I cannot pass in silence the
exemplary manners, discretion, axd abllities of Mr. Toosey,

‘whom I therefore recommend as deservinc Your Lordship's

Notice (1).

T also inclose a List of the ‘Protestant School Masters

;in the Province, with the Salarlies they receive from

Government, and have only to add, that many Urgent

: Applications have been made for more, and that the want
..of proper instructors is no small Mlsfortune. -

I am with much respect and Esteem o

’ Your Lordship's Most obedient and Most humble servant;'

o DORCHESTER
The Right Honble.
Lord Sydney
Endorsed Q

Quebec 24th Oct. 1787.
" LORD DORCHESTER

" No. 42 (one enclosure) -

The clear implication of the words "whom I recommend as

deserving Your Lordship's Notice" is that Toosey had not
baen appointed to any particular benefice, which was
something that the Governor did not desire to do himself.

Toosey was well known to the Governor, as for a time he



" A List of the'Protestant”CIergy in Canada.

_ Bpiscopal. - R | ' Salary per Annum.

1. The Revd. D. Charbrand De'Iisle at Montreal ” L 200 ~ - -

2. b Francis de Montmollin at Quebec - 7 200 - ,v;-'

3. J. B. Leger Veyssier at Three Rivers 200 -fi _ i“

A.FPhillip Toosey - "- | o | o 37.200“_ —.~i"

5. John Doty at Sorel now Wa. Henry . 100 i o
6. John Stuart at Cataraqui now Kingston 100 - - -

7; Bryan at New Johnstown noﬁ Cornwall' - o 50 -

8,:John Langhorne 2d or 3d Township near o

Cataraqul, Missionary with a Salary of B 50
from the Socwety for Pronavating the Gospel

‘ Church of Scotland

‘9. The Revd. Mr. Henry

10, = - Tﬁr. Keith - at Quebec -
11, ;F - Mr. Sparks -
12. Mr Bethune at New Oswegatchie. - L 50 - - —

5 1100 - - -

The Governor also wrote Dr. Inglis to express approval
:of the Bishop's appointment whereupon the Bishop replied (December
.27th 1787) acknowledging the letter and advising that. he would -
visit Canada‘whentthe Governor ‘50 directed The Bishop pointed
out that it ‘was only accessible to him by water. - He also asked '
the: Governor to select a suitable clergynan in Canada for the

. Biohop's commissary in case Mr. Mongan (who had been expected to

go to Canada) did not go out. He added that he desired Lord |

. Dorchester's advice concerning the'stepsothat would be most



conducive to promote religion in the Province of Quebec
Communlcations between Halifax and Quebec were very
difficult and 1etters_took-a long tlme by land express to reach
their destinauion. Thus on February 22nd, '1788 'the Bishop-
acknowledged the receipt of the Govearnor's 1etter written on _
November 3rd 1787, on April 5th, 1788, the recelpt of a 1euter L
written on January 9th 11788; and on May 20th, 1788 a letter of
»March 27th | ' | | e
, _ " From the exchanve of letters it appears that 1t had been‘
expected that Mr. Mcngan would gc to Queoec in the spring of 1788,
,ubut instead he werit to Ireland.’ Accordlngly in hlslletterlo; R
}April 5tn, ‘the Bishop'avain asked thevGovernor "to sugéestvthe

name of a clergyman to be Rector and Commissarj of Quebec in place‘

"_'of ML. Mongan .

The Governor had alreacy, on March 27th, sent the BlShOp
: a list of clergymen and school masters of the Province, but ‘seems

'to have expressed no opinions on the merits of the. clergymen |
This led the Bishop to wriue agaln to the Governor In hls letter
of May 20th 1788 ‘the Bishop said that he was anxious to have a .
| respectable.clergyman at Quebec and to know if the Governor thought..

that Mr; Toosey was qualified for that statlon and to be Cbmmissary c-
of'the Bishop. . He expressed the view that the clergymen of the |

City of Quebec should understand French, classical 1earning, church

. history, the Fathers and the Popish. controversy. Prudence and

other virtues are_necessary, and, he added, if Mr. TdoSey was'not_'
~qualified, a proper person might be found by the'Archbishop who

‘was. ready to promote religion and literature in the country,
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The Goﬁernor's reply was sent on July 26tﬁ.' No copy of
it 1is availeble but the Bishop's ewn.correspondence gives a good
'idea of iﬁs contents. Wriﬁing some months 1a£er, on Noﬁemﬁer 6th,
to Dr. Moriee of the S.P.G., the Bishop says; o

"Lord Dorchester in a letter dated July 28th, informs
_me that Mr. Tunstall, a young clergyman, is arrlved at
Quebec, with an app01ntment Ifrom the Society - that: the
Society had suggested to his L'p whether Mr. Tunstall might
not be employed at Montreal, in the stead of Mr. De Lisle,
and Mr. Toosey at Quebec in the place of Mr. de Montmollin;
~and whether they might not have some allowance from the
present incunbents,v and his L'p rererred the adJuSument of
- these matters to me (1)." ' ' S

The Bisbop's feplv (2) to the Governor, wrltten on
.iSeptember l8th, 1788, expresses pieasure that ”Mr. Tooseyts
character is se respectable®, and adde,that he4w111 haye.ho
ebjection’to'app01nting him his Commissary, but before deing s0
will await meeting’the Governor and eonsulting‘the Arehbishoﬁ_efv
'Canterbury. | | _ _v‘
The rest of the Bishop'" letter is 1nLerest1ng. .He
" describes the introductlon of forelgn clergymen into Quebec as en _
"1311-judged measure" which had had “a very unhappy ef fect on our.

Cnurch",’ and he continues:

"I had much conversation on the subject with the A.B.
of Canterbury; he lamented the case and mentioned the -
.expedient which he has proposed to your Iordship, as most

eligible to obviate the evil, and am glad to find that by
the arrival of Mr. Tunstall, the design may be. carried into
effect at Montreal; as is done already in the Clty of Quebec
by Mr. Toosey. I have had no late communications from the
Archbishop or Society about this business; they probably
Judged it sufficient to inform your lordsnlp of it who are
on the spot; and I also apprehend that they wished to ’
consult you and have your opinion of the measure before

B anythlng decisive ‘was done. _

It is not easy at this distance to form a clear Judgment
of every minute circumstance that may occur in arrangements -

“f(l) P.A.C. - Correspondence of Cnarles Inglis - Vol. I, p. 100.
(2) Same. Vol. I. p. 2%. ‘ |
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[ ) " of this kind. I shall take the liberty to mention what

appears to be the most adviseable; submitting the whole
hOcher to your Lordship's better Judgment and information.

Mr. Montmollin's advanced age calls for some respite
. from the fatigue of parochial duties; for this and.other
_“causes which render him incompetent for the satisfactory
. performance of his duty", as the Society observes I apprehend
therefore that Mr. Toosey should take on him the charge of -
the congregation in the City of Quebec, and succeed Mr.
Montmollin. It is reasonable that the latter should make
some allowance out of his salary for Mr. Toosey, who is to
do the whole duty; ' yet what part of his salary should be
allowed, I am not competent to Jjudge, being unacqualnted
with circumstances which should determine the proportion;“
The sum of 50 pounds a year seems reasonable, il Mr '
. Montmollint!s circumstances will admit of it.

" Phe same reasons will.apply to Mr. De Lisle at Montreal
~as in the former case, but wlth this difference, that Mr. De
Lisle as he informs me, preaches frequently in French to a

number of German Protestants, to whom the 1anguage 1s more
familiar than English. If this be still the case, perhaps .
'~ it would be best for Mr. De Lisle to continue his ministrations‘
. to those people in French; -and that Mr. Tunstall should =
‘ . v officlate in English to those who understand that language;
, I and it appears right some allowance should be made to him ~
- out of Mr, De Lisle!'s salary. This arrangement, I presume, -
would meet the ideas of the Archbishop and the Soclety, - who
have mentioned it to your Lordship for this further reason,
- besides those already specified - that your Lordship only
has authority to interfere in the leiSlon of" those salaries.

- If this scheme is approved of by your Lt'p, and you will
" be pleased to signify to me, I shall willingly write to .the
" several parties concerned on the subject. One thing seems to
be agreed on by all - that Messrs. Montmollin and De Iisle's
bad pronunclation of English is very disgusting, and is
injurious to the cause of religion. The scheme now under
consideration, 1s designed to remove the inconvenience;
should your L!'p think it a proper one, (and of this, you,"
who are on the spot, must be the best Judge) I request that
- your Lordship would be pleased to give such directlons as .
you deem necessary, and I shall cheerfully concur in whatever
you think is best. If your lLordshlp approves this scheme
{which 1is entirely submitted, as was saild above, to your .
Judgment) I would be pleased to give such directions as your
Lordship thinks necessary for the purpose. ,

. | o ' Further- 1ig,ht on the Bisnop's views 1is shed by his letter
to Dr. Morice of November 6th Havinv given the substance of Iord

Dorchesuer's letter of July 28th the Bishop goes on :
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"I candidly told his L'p that I had recelved no :
communications on the subject - that the plan appeared to be
a very proper one, and was intended to obviate the obJections
to Mr. De Lisle and Mr. Montmollin on account of their bad
pronunciation of our language to say nothing of their
advanced age which called for some resplte from the labours
of thelr profession, That if Mr. Toosey and Mr., Tunstall did

" the -whole parochial duty for these gentlemen, 1t was . =~ =
reasonable the latter should make some allowance to them;
but that I could not decide what the sum should be, as it
depended on circumstances with which I was not acquainted.
. That if this .scheme were adopted, it would be best,
' notwithstanding, to let Mr. De Lisle continue his minis»rations
+ in French to a number of Hesslans, who after called on him
‘for that purpose. That I referred the business to his L'p,
as 'the Socliety had done, for this among other reasons, that
he 'only had authority to assign any part of  these clergymen's
" salaries for the proposed purpose, and knew best what :
proportlon should be assigned, and that if his L*p would be
pleased to signify to me his determination, I would readily
concur, and do whatever he thought would be proper on the

occasion.” (1)

The final letter from BlShOp Inglis 1n this exchange of
correspondence appears to be that of December: 20th 1788 In thisl .
the Bishop expressed his 1ntention of visiting Quebec in the
following summer, unless the Governor would then be absent, in vf o
"~ which case "tho intention and design of my gOing ‘would in that
case be frustrated in a great devree As the Governor seems to.;'
have avoided expressing any opinion of his own concerning the clergy
at Quebec and Montreal, the Bishop again sougnt his v1ews’: .

"Your Lt'p would also oblige me by letting me know your .
sentiments about fixing Mr. Toosey at Quebec, and Mr Tunstall.
‘at Montreal; and of the allowance that should be made to

- them by the present incumbents of these places, when these -
gentlemen do the whole of the clerical duty. I am'so little
acquainted with the state of persons and things there, that
I am afraid of taking a step, which may be wrong; 'and doing
nothing is better than doing amlss. Besldes, an attempt to
exert authority, would without power. to support this attempt
be rather awkward. For these reasons I wish to have your
Lp's oplnion, and then I can proceed on sure ground.. I shall

(1) P.A.C. - Charles Inglis Correspondence, Vol. I, pp. 107 - 108.
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readily conform to whatever you think 1is best, and write

. accordingly to all parties. The delicacy which your Lt'p
shows about interfering, serves only to make me rely more
on your Jjudgment, and to raise you still higher if possible

in my. estimation." (1)

There is no record of Dorchester's reply, but it must be

assumed - whatever he may have said about ecclesiastical affairs-—'

that: he told the BlShOp he would be in Quebec during the summer )
' and to come upon his v1sitatiou, for on May 12th, 1789, the‘

Bishop embarked on board the Dido, a frigate of 28 guns,'and on | .

- the following morning sailed for Quebec.

After stopping a little more than a day at Charlottetown,'

the Dido came to anchoxr off Ouebec on Tuesday, June. 9th.

The Quebec Gazette of Thursday, June 11th, 1789, gives
the following account of the Bishop's arrival 4

i "Tuesday afternoon arrived from Halifax, 1ast from
the Island of St. John (2), his Majesty's Frigate Dido,
Charles Sandys, Esq., Commander. In.her -came the Right
Reverend Father-in-God CHARIES, Bishop of Nova Scotia.
Yesterday forenoon the Bishop left the Dido, accompanied
by Captain Sandys, under a salute of eleven guns, and was
recelved on shore by Colonel. Davies, Commander of the -
Garrison, and several other officers, the Reverend Mr. de

. Montmollin, Rector, and the Reverend Mr, Toosey, Minister

-, of the Church in this city, and several respectable citizens."

The Bishop records the same event in his Diary, mentioning

that he had gon2 on shore uith Capot. Sandys in.his barge and

adding :

o "waited on Lord DOPChDSber and had much conversation
with him, He invited Cap't Sandys and me to dine with him .
~next day in the Country. Iooked out for lodgings Several
appeared bad, and at last fizxed at Mr. Frank's %5 Even
- these lodgingu appeared very indifferent. Agreed for them
- at 8 dollars per month. Dined with Col Davis

(1) Pp.A.C. - Correspondence of Ch arles Inglis, Vol.II, p. 128,
(2) The name by which Prince Edward Island was then|known.

(3) Probably at No. 2 de Buade Street where Franks had his tavern
and only a few doors away from de Montmollin's house.




'”mhe Blshop.then returned.to‘the "Dido" and aa the
following day was very wet and stor my he sent an excuse to the
.;Governor and remained on boardo -The following day hé went ashore 'f
expecting to find his lodgings-ready out they Were'"wet.and unfitﬁ
. for going 1nto",'so he again returned to the ship. - Finally they d
"were ready on Saturday, and the Bishop after dining atlnr Tooseyzs

spent his first night in his lodOinvs. E l
. Of tho Sunday, the Bishon's Dlary records :

"preached in Recollet Church to a crowded audience
Mr. Montmollin read prayers. In the afternoon, Mr. Montmollin
preacned and Mr. Toosey read prayers, ‘This is the first time .
Divine Service was solemnlzed in the City of Quebec in the
afternoon. Dined at ny lodglngs°

.What followed is best described in the Bishop'q ovin

word% recorded in his Dlary

"Monday, June 15th, 1789. Visited by several gentlemen.
As there were no Church wardens nor Vestry to consult with
about the state of the Church, I requested several of the
principal inhabitants to meet me on the following Wednesday, .
that I might have their advice and receive information from °
them, - Dined with Mr Houghton at the Mess of the 53rd
'Reglment o

' "Wednesday, June 17th 1789 The following gentlemen .
met at ny lodgings, viz., Col. Caldwell, Mr. Collins, Mr. Dunn, '
Mr. Alsopp, Mr. Ogden, who informed me of the deplorable '
state of the Church of England, having no place of worshilp,
but at the French Churches by permission of the owners, and
‘unable ‘to bulld one., After much conversation, they requested
me to wait on ILord Dorchester to beg his advice and concurrence
in procuring the exclusive use of the Recollet Church, of _

- making compensation to the Recollect (sic) Friars, three in
‘number. I immediately waited on his Lordship, who informed
me 1t was impracticable to obuain the Church. Dined with

..Col. Caldwell "
Thounh it is not relevant to the subject of de Montmollin,

iv is of some intereot to note part of the next entry in the Diary.
. , %‘ ,

|

|

i
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o “Thursday, “June 18 h 1789 Being the day appointed for
- rejoicings on account of th= Kingt's recovery, there was a
public dinner at Lord Dorchester's, where I dined. There was
a rout in the evening, when company of both sexes attended.
The Canadian Ladies and Gentlemen dressed in the English mode;
-and this was the only sign that yet appeared of my being in
an English City, besldes the appearance of the Garrison.. For
the Canadians who are here 5 to 1, have all the Churches; and
are French as much as when they were conquered etc., etc."

On the following day the Bishop waited on the Governor by
f appointment and they had a conference of two hours on the state of
religion and literature in the Province,'and the means of promoting |

them,_ The Diary continues :

" . . . Ve had some warm altercations which, however .
ended amicably. His disposition 1is generous and his principles -
liberal; these perhaps are carried to excess so as to make
too little distinction betwzen the National Church and other

- denominations . . . . . The Chief Justice (1) 1is a
Presbyterian, and being confidential with. his Lordship, and

“his prime minister, as it were, hence a predllection in favour -

of Dissenters . . . .

We differed most about a Church in Quebec. Church
people have the use of the Recollect Church in the Forenoon,
upon sufferance; and they can have the entire use of 2 small
Chapel in the Bishop's Palace (2), which 1s rented by the
Crown, but the Courts of Justice slt in the Chapel. His
~ Lordship affirmed from hence that Church people had two
Churches; whereas I denied that they had any, and declared
~ my. opinion that the Church could never flourish here, unless
- there was a decent place of worship appropriated to divine =
‘service, which the national credit also seemed to require.
The chapel in the palace is too small for the congregation,
and the people can have no pews in the Recollect Church., = =
Their books, seats, chairs, etc., must all be brought after
mass 1s over and removed again when the Sermon 1s ended. ‘
.. Hence confusion is unavoidable and the people are put to much
trouble. These eircumstances are very unfavourable to devotion .
. and order. Should the Church people conclude to build a Church,
_his Iordship promised to give any lot of ground that. belonged
to the King, and algo any timber that could be spared from
public use ., . . ‘ .

On the followingvsnnday;'Jnne let,'the Bishop preached,

as he recorded, "to a large audience in the Recollect Church".

(1) William Smith, mentioned earlier as having accompanied the
Governor to Quebec ‘ , i _

f(z) At the top of Mountain Hill leading to the uppertown of Quehec.’
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The Recollects as well as Lord Dorchester, -according to the Bishop,
were averée to’iﬁ being uséd in-the afternoon,hso the‘Bishop directed
that divine service be performed in the Bishop's Chapel in the
"afternoon, and %o continue so thereafter. Mr Toosey preached
During the next two days the Bishop again met the
‘.r gentlemen who had wished him %o present the request to the Governorn
and informed them of his answer. They agreed.to request hin to :
. grant a vacant plece of land opposite the old prison, andxafter theA
Bishop had ekamined it he mentioned it at dinner the following
- evening to his Lordship. - ) -
| on the following daJ, Wednesday, June 24th the Bishop
"had uhat aopears to have been his first discussion with de Monumollln.
His Diary records : _ 1
o e e . Informed Mr. Montmollin. that it was the Society's
w1sh that he should have a respite, at his advanced age (1),
from the labours of his funciion, and have the Engllsh congre-
gation of Quebec commlitted to an English Clergyman. That he
might stlll officlate in French, 1f there was a necessity as
was origlinally designed; or he mlght retire whenever he - -
choese, and enjoy his salary, if there was no occasion for
- preaching in French. That no disrespect or injury was
intended for him, but that his Grace of Canterbury had
“intimated the step to Iord Dorchester., Mr. Montmollin seemed
to acqulesce with some reluctance, and I desired him to
reflect on the business till I returned from Montreal- for
which place I set out at 2 otclock, P.M. . . . .
The Bishop!'s Dlary gives an interesting account of'his_
rip‘to.Montreal, and an excellent idea of the means of communication:
between Quebec and Montreal., He was absent from Quebec for moreh
than three weeks; and had the opportunity of hearing Mr;,Veyesiere}
Of him the Bishop wrote: ™"Mr. Veysslere read prayers but I could

‘scarcely understand him".. On the following Sunday, he listened to

(1) He vas thenv68‘years of age.
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. . Mr. De Lisle read prayera-‘-and-.ﬂ;preach;.‘ ”a;fd noted in his Diary :
"T could scarcely understand him,'though he speaks and reads
Englisb much better than Messre Montmollin or Veyssiere, and his
character is more respectable | | |
v The Bishop returned to Quebec in the evening of Saturday
July 18th, and heard both Mr Toosey and Mr ‘Montmollin preach on
the follOW1ng{day, being much too fatigued to preach hlmself -The'
<next day he took advantage of the of fer made by the Hon. ‘Hugh
Finlayvand moved to his house. Tnis gave the Bishop the opportunity -
of telling Mr. Finlay of his inuentlon “to -appoint Toosey ‘to officiate
for the Congregation, and on the following day of carrying on a :
similar conversation with George Alsopp, a former Legislatlve
'_Councillor, .and also with Colonel Caldwell | _

‘ S The Bishop dined with de Montmollin on the succeeding
Sunday, but his Diary makes no mention of the conversation between
'them.l The next entry that refers to de Montmollin is for Tuesday,}

”‘July 28th : | ' _ '

0 m. . .Afterwards (1) I met several gentlemen of the -
Church of England about buillding a Church. Much backwardness

- appeared., They represented it as the unanimous desire of the -
Congregation that an English Minister should be . fixed here. =
Onie said he would not subscribe to a Church if Mr. Montmollin

" was continued. Another said 1t was a punishment to him to

. hear Mr. Montmollin, etc., etc. Agreed finally to have a
subscription opzned for a Church, and that notice be given
next Sunday for the Congregation to meet in the Chapel at
11 otclock, the following Tuesday to chuse {sic) parish
Officers to serve till next Easter., My servant, Thomas .
Robertson, misbehaved, got drunk and absented himself this’
day.‘ Dined with the Baron Club. _

The Bishop waited on the Governor'later in the same

‘ : ' week and discussed the question of the Church at Montreal. ,They_

(1) That is, after he had beer: elected an honorary member of the'
A:'Sociecy for promoting Agr*culture.
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. also talked of de Montmo] 1in. Th Diary relates:

o -I also enqulred whether he approved of having

* o

~ the congregation commnitted to Mr. Toosey, instead of Mr. .

- Montmollin, and told him that this appeared to be the general.
wish of the people. His answer was that he entirely approved
ofit‘.... o i )

Up to this time, “the Blsnop had not resumed his earlLer .

'conversation uith de Montmollln, but he did so on Friday,‘>

~duly )lS’G

"Spoke this morning to Mr. Moptmollin about this step
At first he seemed to be refractory and to moan, but on
resolutely telling him that I would do my duty, that things
must be brought to thelr original state and design, which
was that he should preach in French, he seemed to be more
calm., I endeavoured to soften matters as much and hurt his
- feelings as little as I could: He finally acquiesced. This
" was 2 disagreeable scene. Mr, Montmollin was Minister here .
for 21 years. He had some zeal and his moral character was
L pretty fair, but he did not understand the discipline or
‘ ‘ ‘usage of our Church. He could not pronounce, nor .did he
understand English. His mind was sordid, his manners
uncouoh and his address mean and discustwng < e e .

"
On_the morrow, the Bw shop met both de Montmollin and
'Toosey‘to ecquaint them, when togeuher,-tnet the Engllsh congrega-
tion would be committed‘to Toosey, and exhortedithem'to "outual
_ peace and brotherly love" . o _. o
‘ - On Tuesday of the fo110w1ng week the meeting to "chuse
_ the churchwardens and vestrym n vas held - the flr L in the parioh -
:}aqd L 150 vas subscrlbed for building a church |
The so-called "V131tat101 was held on the follow1nv day,
end attended by the eigho clergynen including the Rev. John Stuart
ffom Kingston and the Rev. John Langhorne of Ernest and_Frederick-
vburgh The Vi°ﬁ‘ationlcontinued‘on the four suﬂceeding da&s, on‘

l ' each of which Divine Serv1ce was solemnized, and a sermon preached

in the RecolTect Church by one of the clevbym N,
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. The final entry'in the Diary concerning de Montmollin is
that of Monday, August 17th

‘ "Gave a certificate to Mr. Montmollin that the appowntment
: of Mr. Toosey to be the English Minister, was not owing to
any irregularity of conduct, or immorality in Mr. Montmollin,“‘

who was a Clergyman of good ablilities and falr character, but = -

to the expediency of the English Congregation, now increased,
‘to have a preacher that spoke English, as his native lanvuage,ﬁ
and that Mr. Montmollin was still to officiate in Frencn as
originally designed, if found necessary . . o .

" On the same day, at 1 o'clock a number of gentlemen i

'ascembled at the Bishop's lodgin~s and accompanied him to the Beach

. He went aboard the "Weazle" (so spelled) which fired a salute

and at half past 3 o'clock the vessel weiohed anchor and sailed

Afor Halifax

It was August 26th, when the "Ueazle ‘arrived in Halifax -

to return the Bishop in health and safety. On thevfollowing day - :

in order to send his letter by a Shlp Just sailing for London -

he wrote to his Grace of Canterbury a full and detailed account of

his visit to the City and Province of Quebec. In this letter,

Bishop Inglis descrihes, in much the same terms as he had'usedbini”'

his Diary, the conditions he had found in. the‘couree ofzhis.tratels;

His remarks concerning de Montmollin were no more favourable than

" those récorded in his Diary. He beoan his - letter Wibh the statement'

that he had arrived‘the preVious day from Quebec "where the_state

'of things is complicated It is a colony with an English Garrison,A<
The Canadians were to the Enolisn as five to one and enjoyed

-religious privileges, tbeir cus»one, manners and language a11 seemed‘

as much detached from us as the day after the conquest" " Then he

continuead:

‘"On'the'other hand the English'were few in number, had
no church appropriated to thelr worship. Divine Service was
‘solemnized in the forenoon only at the church belonging to .
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the Recollects; when the Roman Cathollcs had performed. their
devotions there, the Englisnh had thelr pews, benches and -
seats to set up, for all these were movable, and actually

were removed the moment that Divine Service is ended; their |
books also were to be distributed. It is needless to say

that all this must be attended with great inconvenience and
confusion, not to mention the degrading situation of the
Congregation thus circumstanced. -The officiating Clergyman, |
Mr. Montmollin, who has been stationed here upwards of 20 ‘

- years, was a foreigner, spoke very bad English ~.could

scarcely be understood; and although not deficient in
abilities, nor chargeable with any immorality, yet his
address and manners disqualified him for the station, and -
he seemed utterly unacquainted with the constitution, usages -
and regulations of our Church. No churchwardens or vestry -
had been ever chose. The English were a number of detached

- individuals, wholly unorganized and w1thout any form of

order or Government

Your Grace can more easily conceive that I can express
my feelings at this state of things - tho prepared for it,
I was much chagrined to find it worse than I had apprcldnded@
I communicated my uneasiness to Lord Dorchester; and told
him if he had a right to command the use of the Recollect -
Church, I would out of respect for him, officiate in it; but-
if he had not the right, I could not think of degrading '

- myself so far as to be indebted to a few old Friars for ﬁhe

use of a church. His L'p assured mz that he had an undoubtedA;,

" right. to the use of the Church, and to a small chapel in the

Bishopt!'s palace which was rented by Government, and would

. hold about 150 people. I then acquiesced; and on Sunday
.following, Mr. Montmollin read prayers and I preached; in - -
.the afternoon Mr. Toosey read prayers and Montmollin preached
- This was the first time that Evening Prayer had been .

performed in Quebec, Mr. Montmollin read the service

. miserably, and I could not understand half of ‘his sermon.

Mr. Toosey seldom officiated, for Mr. Montmollin consideredv

~him as an 1ntruder, and wish d to do everything himself

-~ As there are no church wardens or vestry, and consequently
no fixed and ostensible body to consult, I called the

. principal gentlemen of the congregatlon, many of whom were
respectable for thelr rank, abilities and property; - that
. I might have their advice how to proceed, the utmost caution

being necessary on my part. They met, I desired them to

" speak their sentiments freely, fully and candidly, and not

confine themselves to obscure hints, which I found was too.

" much the case hitherto, and that I would do the utmost of my

power to second thelr reasonable wishes. Thls had the desired
effect; they appeared sensible of thelr wretched situation;
expressed their dislike of Mr. Montmollln, and wished for

an English preacher. They finally requested me to wait on
Lord Dorchester 1n thelr name,. to know whether some agreement
could not be made with the few Recollects (only three) so
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that the English might have the exclusive right of their
Church, or some other church that was large enough for the-
Congregation. I accordingly stated the matter to L*d -
Dorchester. The purport of hls answer was - that 1f the

_ Church had been demanded Just after the conquest, it would.‘-

have been given up without murmuring; but after 30 years
possession, 1t would be deemed an act of violence to take .

" it from them. That even now they would acqulesce were he

to 1ssue an order for the purpose, the order would be obeyed;“
but as the Roman Catholics clalmed that Church, which was
bullt by the public, and alleged they wanted it it would be
1mproper to use coerclve measures. _ .
ol - - ‘
"} On this subject of a church, I had some warm altercatlon'_

with his L'p, both now and afterwards, but it always ended

amicably. He is a most worthy exemplary man; and i1t gave
me pain to say anything that would hurt him; but I was

‘determined to do my duty; and it is an invarliable maxim with‘
: me,]that when a man is in the line of hils duty, and aims at

that only, he should fear nothling. Flnding that it would.

be more agreeable to his L'p to have Evening Service performed
in the Bishopt's Chapel than in the Recollect Church, I gave
directions accordingly - by glving way in small matters, I
would have a better right to insist on matters of moment.

I immediately called the: gentlemen of the congregatlon
together and reported L. D's answer. I told them there
appeared no prospect at present of obtaining a church;. and

therefore 1t only remained for them to try thelr strength

in bullding one. They alleged their. utter inability. This

indeed was too evident but I judged it best to push the

matter to an issue, and when it falled, some other ground
must be taken. They finally agreed to make the attempt; a

‘vacant spot (the only one remaining in the City) was pitched

on, and surveyed the next day. Even this scheme, hopeless
atlit was, spread a gleam of Jjoy over every English

'countenance, and I left the matter to work its way for the

presenu.

‘1 It being now time to begin my tour of Montreal, distant

1180 miles, I set out June 2lhth, after informing Mr. Montmollin

that it was the Soclety!s wish as well as Lord Dorchester's
and the Congregation's, that an English preacher might be
settled at Quebec. He appeared restif at first, and a

~good deal chagrined; I spoke in the softest manner, and

avoided every expression that would hurt his feelings; and
seeing I was determined, he flnally acquiesced ~ I then
proceeded to Three Rivers 90 miles." o

Then, after having told of his experiehces at Three

Rivers, Sorel and Mohtreal, the Bishop continued : -
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"Mr., De Lisle, ‘the clergvman stationed here, is a
. senslble, well bred man, but speaks English no better than -

Mr. Montmollin." ‘ . .

The Bishop's recollection of Mr. De Lisle's.English does
not exactly accord with his impressions as noted in his Diary,
where‘he had written : . | | -

"Mr. De ILisle read Prayers. In the afternoon he preached

I could scarcely understand him, though he speaks and reads ‘
English much better than Messrs. Montmollin or Veyssiere oo s
{\Much of the Bishop's letter to the Archbishop adds little

to what was recorded in hls Diary, but one phrase confirms the

: impression that de Montmollin refused assistance from others :
"Mr. Toosey seldon officiated,_for Mr. Montmollin considered him

:~1as an intruder and wished to do everything himself",

The Bishop'° observations concernino de Montmollin seem’

'somewhat unsympathetic. "It was certainly no rault_of de Montmollin's

jif'his pronuncilation of English fell short of what the'Bishop

consideredvunderstandable; and the fact thac he had come out to

Qucbec many years before and had spent over. 20 years ministering

to an_Engiish congregation,‘wiuhout»a church that could be calleo._'

their own, were mitigating factors. Inglis had cOme to. Quebec

" with the avowed intention of using a part of de Montmollin's stipend

to pay Toosey, but if this subject was dlscussed the Bisnop's

Diary makes no mention of 1t. The Governor's more sympathetilc ..,

understanding of deiMontmollin,_no doubt, expiains why de Montmollln,

even after belng reduced in status, continued to draw the stipend

of E 200 as "French reader and Preacher to the Canadian Protestants

~at GQuebec”,
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* Another and perhaps-norE"disinterested Opinion of de Montmollin
may here be cited from the de Nontmollin Archives in Neuchatel
Writing from London to Jean Frederick de Montmollin in 1801 a
Mr. de Freudenreich said : S ‘.

NI dined the other day with the Chief Justice of Canada,"
which he had only left a few months agd. He spoke to me with
a great deal of interest of a Mr. de Montmollin whom he had
well known in that country. He was a most respectable -

. Minister, then 87 years of age and established in Canada

for 40 years, where he does a great deal of good and is -
highly considered. If he is one of yur relatives you could
easily have news of him, and if he 1s not you wlll learn

wlth pleasure that.a man of your name is playing such a
distincuished part " A

et em e eh o ek v e ke AR e . s m em

~ In considering de Montmollin's tenporal'affairs, the
'transactions he had entered into, presumably for the benefit of -
his two sons, were referred to. On Juno 11th 1788, he undertook
to make further-efforts both for himself and his ‘three sons.
vDescribino himself as "Rector of the English Church in Quebec and
AActing Deputy Chaplain to the Garrison", de Montmollin addressed
a Memorial to the Governor. Nearly the whole of the first page ist.
taken up by large copoer plate lettering giving the titles of the |
| Governor,-and the second sets forth that de Montmollin had served
“ the Garrison for abovc Nineteen years past, having a numerous
.family and begged his Lordship to grant him (on the North side of |
‘the Grand River above‘the Long Sault adjoining the intended grant :
to be made to the'Emigrants) 500 acres_for'himself, 200 for John
Frederick de Montmollin, 200 for’John-Samuelzde_MOntmollin»and 200 vh
for Francis:Gaudet de Montmollin. <This Memorial was referred to |

the Iand Committee by order of His Excellency. By this time
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Francis would have been in his 19th year; -the others would’have

_been between 21 and 25.

Nothlng appears to.have come from this Memorial

What might be considered as a furtner emergency arose

' later that year.. To meet it de Montmollin entered into a somewhat

" unusual contract with Messire Jacaues Guichaux, Priest and Cuaate:'

of the Parish of Ste, Famille of the Island of Orleans = a’
“constltution de rente" - under which de Montmollin undertook to

pay annually unarante huit livres de vingt ‘coppres cnaque-livre";

in consideration of L 800 received by him; this to be'secured on

the de Buade Street property. As he had not yet reimbursed the

B 200 he owed W1111am Brown, the deed accordlngly mentions this as

an outstanding encumbrance. Then twelve days later he borrowed_a

further & 50 from John Craigie 'the'Commissary General and L 100

' from Thomas Aston Coffin, the Secretary of" the Province, and

hypothecated as security both the de Buade property and the vacant
lot on St. Louls Street, these sums being repayable 1n August and :
December 1789, respectively._ o '

_ ~ The records of the same notary, Nicolas Pinguet also
include another interesting deed, a sale of moveables_from Eustachej
Boivert to John Samuei de Montmollin. The deed contains‘a list of.

the property . sold :

3 brown and whlte cow, 5 years old h ' | L 72 0O Ol‘
A large mirror 3 feet x 22 feet - with gold - ) A :
) | frame | 36 0 O
' A mirror one foot square with gold frame . 8 O 0
. Four wooden tables of pine - 24 0 o0
o

‘A small desdeith'four'drawers - | _ o 9 12
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A small bureau with four drawers in pine B 6 0 O
Six straw chairs . = o .- . 7T 4 o
Two pair of iron wheels for a carriage R 772 0 o "

making a total of & 235 4 shillings which de Montmollin paid cash ~h-
in the notary's presence, while the seller merely undertook to '
ydeliver the various articles within a year. | .‘ |

| Iater in the same year, Notary Pinguet received a: furthera
deed under which Samuel and Frederick de Montmollin granted-a power‘

"-of attorney in connection with the contract. they had made with"

iy Debarats in Anril 1787 ’ What is significant is that whereas that

contract had described Frederick as residing in Quebec, the power

of attorney mentions him as’ being-absent, wnich implies that he had

_left Quebec. | v - o ' " o
Early in January 1790 another contract 'reCcived by

.charles_stewart - the only English speaking notary then practisiﬁg -

in Quebec § gives a better'idea'of'the‘situatiOn.' ihe_parties to.f

it,‘the'Rector,'Samuel de Montmollin, described as.one of . the |

‘partners_of the firm of Samuel and Frederick de Montmollin, and .

. "John Yung, one of the partners of,Frasér'and Young, declared that"r

‘the partnership of Samuel and Frederick'owed to Fraser-and Young
"under the guarantee of the said Reverend David Francis de Montmollin
for sundry Goods, Wares, and Merchandise sold and delivered to

‘them a certain sum ascertained to be & 1555 19 shillings and. three

vpence currency, which they declared was at present inconvenient

for them the sald House or Firm of Samuel and Frederick de Montmollin

'to discharge. As security the Rector and his two sons mortgaged

all of their property, and the Rector more particularly his
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properties on de Buade and St. Louis Streets; which were declared .
to be free of all encumbrances excepting those created on December‘

18th and 30th 1788 mentioned earlier. Frederick did not sign the a:

being represented by his brother and 1t may be inferred that he =

- was still absent

-As will be noted at. a later p01nt the indebtedness to

- Fraser. and Younv was paid off Wlbh interest What is of interest

'here is that the discharge which was completed before Notary

Stewart on November 8th, 1794, after referring to the deed of
January 20th 1790, describes the sons as "Messrs. Samuel and

Frederick de Montmollin then of the City of Quebec" which lmplies

. that they were no longer of the City of Quebec.A ‘So that it seems

‘clear that Samuel like Frederick, had also gone furtner afield in

‘the meanwhile. o

Though he was still liable as guarantor of the 1arge

amount owed by hls sons to Fraser and Young, and his property was

.mortgaged for more than its value, de Montmollin in the autumn of

1792 embarked upon a new undertaking which was lntended~to_improve

the fortunes of himself and his three sons. = In February.of that

year, ILord Dorchester had caused a Proclamation to be published .

holding forth‘encouragement to all comers to settle‘the waste lands
of the Crown, and in the followinv September de Montmollvn decided
to make an application for a.large tract of land on the River |

Becancour, a‘stream which wanders through the Townships and flows'

into the St. Lawrence a few mliles below Three Rivers.
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' After noting that de hontmollin had been a resident of

| the Province for twenty—five years and upwards as Minister of the :

Protestant English Church in the City and-Parish of Quebec and .

-after referring to. the proclamawon of February Tth, 1792, the

Petition - dated September 24th 1792 - represented that two of i¢f

the Petitioner's sons "by their connections “in trade" had a.

- facility in procuring settlers to go on the lands applied for ,EV:'M

"in a reasonable delay , and pointed out that lands lying to the
Eastward of the Township 1a1d out for. Jenkin Williams, Esq. (1),.'
on the River Becancour were avallable. The Petition concludes

with a final paragraph - which seems most surprlsing having regard

~ to the fact ‘that de Montmollin was then over 70 years of age -

that :

"Your Petitioners are desirou° to cultivate each of
them Twelve hundred acres, or six Farms, Lots to be granted
- to them severally and their respective heirs and assigns
for ever in free and common soccage‘(2) " , R

| Another point of Interest appears from the signature. of

the Petition which was signed by de Montmollin for himself and for -

" his “absent sons John Frederic de Montmollin, John Samuel de

o Montmollin and Francis Gaudet de Montmollin, who have all attained

the age of majority" and for "our associates to be named hereafter";
, - The reference to the associates is explained by the fact
that 1mmediately prior to the maxing of this application de

Montnollin had entered into an agreement with George Allsopp by

|
1

(1) Clerk of the Levislative Council 1776- 91; appointed Judge of

the Court of Common Pleas in 1791.
(2) A freehold tenure of land. '
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which it was agreed that Allsopp would be COncerned equally "in a

Township of ten miles square to be.appliedvfor on the River

.Becancour on . the nearest vacant lands ad301ning M. Judge Williams,

'that is to say uhatever farms are allotted to the subscriber D F.fb

ae Montmollin and his three sons shall be equally divided" and

"the Patent when obtained to be 'in the names of D F. de Montmollin,.

~his sons by name, and their associates". The approval and consent

of John Samuel - dated "22 Sept. 1792" and signed by him - appears

at the foot of the Agreement but it seems likely that it was

- signed on some other date than the Agreement itself

The Peuition was promptly referred 10 the nand Committee -
which recommended that it be granted, and 1ater the Lieutenant-
Governor ordered by Warrant that a survey of tne Township be made,
but no provision having been made by de Montmollin and his sons.
towards defraying the expense, nothing further was done with
respect to the Petition. ' - |

Though the Petition aives an interesting sidelight on.

.de Montmollin's willinoness at his advanced age to embark upon such

an ambitious project it is more interesting as a positive indication

that in September 1792 all of his sons had apparently 1eft Quebec.<

" By that time - as the Petition stated - all of them were of the

“age of majority, Francis, the youngest son havincr been born. in

Quebec .on December 9th 1769, and the others having been born inA
England .Francis. appears to have disappeared into the mist, for

none of the deeds that have been found in the records of the

notaries in Quebec at this time mentions him, nor is there any
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.othervindication that he.later returned to Quebec. The de Montmollin
fanily tree, which gives the names of the descendants of John _

Frederilc and John. Samuel, shows no i sue of. Francis.

Though Bishop Inglis before'his;departure from_Quebec:'
had exhorted de Montmollin and Toosey to “mutual peace and'brotherly'
.flove" it seems unlikely that this exhortation produced a very '
marked change in the-relations between the two. Toosey, of course,
after having been licensed by the Bishop on Auvust 8th 1789, _f"
assumed tne functions of Rector ol the thurch and’ Parish of Quebec .‘
and also those of EccleSLastical Commissary of the Eastern District
Lof Canada. de Montmollln, upon his part, continued from time to
fuime to officiate at christeninos, marriages and burials |
Toosey, however, seems not to have been entirely content

with the situation in which he found himself This may be inferred
- from a paper addressed by him on October 28th, 1790 to Lord o
Dorchester and glving a list of the Protestant clergy in the
iProvince of Quebec, with their. place of residence, salaries from
_the Crown, ‘ete. - There he wrote : .
| - "The Rev'd Philip Toosey, Ecclesiastical Commissary of
~the Eastern District of Canada, tc which no salary is as yet
annexed. The same person ministers to the Engllsh congrega- .
flon in Quebec. Salary from the Crown, & 200 sterling per
annum. . - S .
- In Quebec, the'Capital of the Britisn Empire 1n.America,-.
there 1s no Church belonging to the English congregation,

no Parsonage House, Glebe land, Tythe or pecuniary
compensatlon, as yet assigned to the Minister!



" And then after drawing attenuion to the failure of the
Chaplain to the Garrison of Quebec either to reside or to pay for
his duty being done, though receiving a salary of £ 115 5 stg. B
per'annum, continued r . | o a s
‘#The Rev'd David F“ancis de Montmollin appointed tox
read and preach in French. Salary & 200 stg. per annum. Not
being found competent by the Bishop of Nova Scotia to read
. and preach in English, he doeas no duty, there being no
'Canadian Protestants to form a congregztion.”

‘ As the Governor, Lord Dorchester, was fully aware of what'
the Bishop of Nova Scotia thought of de Montmollin's capabilities,:
further repetition of the Bishop's views can only be regarded as

lsomewhat mallcious, or at least as wanting in the "brotherly love™

,expected of Toosey by the Bishop,' Indeed ‘there does Seem to be j
-‘fa note of Jealousy orjdiscontent'in this>report, the fact that no
salary was'"annexed".to the office of Commissary,:and avain'the
: payment of a salary to de Montmollin, who did no duty, 1ndicate
- elearly Toosey's dissauisfaction. . ' '
| Toosey's ministry proved to be of short duration - On
B July 7tn 1793, Jacob Mountain was. consecrated Bishop of Quebee "l'
a newly created see - and on November 1st of that year he and his
brother Salter Jehosaohat and their wives and families - thlrteen
in all - landed at Qnebec, after a voyage lastinv eleven weeks 1n _
the frlgate "Ranger"; Upon their arrival tne Rev S. J. Mountain
became Rector of Quebec in the place of Phillip Toosey.

| | Even_though Quebec had now its own Bishop and a new -

'rector,lit was stlll without alProtestant'church, and had no

prospect of securing one. At least there seemed to be no such

,'prospect until the afternoon of September 9th, 1796;'when the
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Chapel and Monastery»of the-Recoilets ceught fire and was'totallyr
destroyed. The:few remaining'monksfwere rendered homeless and
'dispersed~ andtthe'government'at 1ong‘1ast came into possession':t'
of the Recollet property. Hopes must then have risen; and a few: ’
years later commissioners were apoointed to erect on it a _' |
._Metropolitan Church : The flrst stone was laid’ ‘on Au"ust 1lth,
‘h18OO by the Iieutenant Governor, and four years later the churchsﬁﬁ
was consecrated as the Cathedral of the Holy Trinity - a fine '
example of Georgian architecture that 1is one of the principal .

.p01nts of interest in Quebec Clty today.

T . O e S U W O

It would seem that the departure of his three sons and_,
the financial difficulties of John Frederic and John Samuel N
'suosequently made it necessary for de Montmollin to dispose of the'

de Buade Street property.. It seems obvious that with his sons

absent, the prooerty would have been far too 1arge for de Montmollin;‘

.'hlS wife, and their three servants (l), but 1t may reasonably be ~hl |

.inferred that the dom*nant factor in his de01sion to sell was the a

-1iability'of_himse1f and his two_sons to Messrs Fraser and Young.
y’.‘ Though‘the‘formalldeed of sale vas only completed on
h Novenber 28th, 1794, an agreement before witnesses had been signed‘

- by dé’Montmollin and'hishwife some'three veeks earlier, on :

' November 6th, by which they undertook to sell the property to

(1) The Census made on July 30th, 1792, of the Roman Catholic
' Parish of Quebec, shows that the Roman Cathollc parishioners
at 10 de Buade Street were three in number, all of them
communlcants :
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Treadway Thomas Odber,  a tradervof Quebec, actinv for himself‘and

. for Christopher Crysal Hall of London and for James Uoolrich of

vMontreal And on the 31gnature of that agreenent Odber had made'

a cash payment of L 600 on account of the aoreed prlce of 5. 1224 b;.
It was obv1ously no c01nc¢dence that two days later a final '

dlscharve was nranted by Messrs. Fraser and Young of the guarantee'f‘
and mortgage given ‘them by de Montmolllnf Though the diocharge does

not give an indication that de Montmoilin had prov1ded the funds

to pay off the 1iability of hils two sons,'the_closeness of.the two.

dates is significant.

There is also another circunstances that sup ports the .

" inference that there was a very close conneCuion between the sonst

liabillty}and the sale. According,to the deed executed before

Notary Planté; L 600 of the priceahad'been paid on November 6th,

:and the balance of L 624 was to be paid oy three annual instalments o
of L 208 each beginning on Novemoer 1s€t, 1795, w1th 1nterest at
6 per'cent Two whole years elaosed - in other woros, two of these'

'1nstalments were paid - before de Montmollln appeared as a lender B

on mortg ge. Indeed a loan of ‘B 111 2 shllllngs, the first~of

.several mortgaoe loans. granted by him was made on November Tth, -
'_1(90, before Roger L°11evre, Notary, tokbe followed six‘months 1aterl

- by another of the same amount.

_ ' From these-facts it seems quite clear that the cash'payment
recelved for the de Buade property served to pay off the liabllities

de Montmollin had contracted for the benef;t of his sons.
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Though John Samuel de Montmollin had left Quebec sometime
between the early part of 1790 and September 1792 he’ returned to
Ouebec sometime in 1795, and in December of_that'year applied.ror a
grant of the ‘whole Township of Wentworth, situated on the Northl'
_side of the River Ottawa. The Petitlon, dated December hth, 1795,
which he, on behalf of himself and his assoclates, addressed to the"
Right Honorable Guy, Lord Dorchestef, represented that he hadibeen.:'
‘ concerned in an application for a townShip on the South‘side of'the'
.R;ver Becancour - which he understood had since between recommended
to be granted to others, he, owino to hlS absence from the Province,}
‘ not having come forwar in due time w1th th as sociates and prayed
fo; the orant to him and hlS associates of the Township orf Uentwortb
.Early in the following year the Land Committee, noting that this 1 |
township "being open from the neglect of Obadiah Blake" and in
.ofder'to preVent 'any persons disaffected to His MaJesty's
government from becoming settlers in this Province", recommended
that the Petitioner be directed to furnish before May lst, 1796,

"a 1ist of his associates.and the places of.their abode'together'.
with such pnoofs of their character. and principies as he or they
'may be able to adduce", before any Warrant was granted for surveyineia
-the tract applied for.‘ | o |

It would appear that bhis 1ist of assoclates was not
| mmmediately produced dnd it is mox e,than possible that by the
time the Land Committee had made this recommendation Jonn Samuel -
~ had agein left Quebec in the pursuit of his_other activities; ‘He_
‘wes back-again-in the city, however,,iate‘in July 1796,‘and on the |
28th of that month, before Notary Lelidvre, he_entered into what




can only be regarded as a-most unusual contraCt. "By it he-
acknowledged that he had entrusted Marguerit e, his naturalndaughter

aged two years to Joseph Derome dib Decareau, master butCher, and |

,Dame Marguerite Bro, the latter's wife, until ‘she attained the -

age of 21 years or married The Decareaus, husband and wife were r
to feed, shelter and maintain Marguerite according to her status and

uo_instruct_her in the principles of religion,‘to send her to school

: (having regard to'her:religion) when she was able to‘speak,'and to

take every possible care of her, and to treat her humanelj; "o
indemnifyiand to encourage' the Decareaus as the contract reads,;::
John Samuel - described as “Samuel de Moatmollin ‘residing in,tnis
city of Quebec" - made them a "gratuitous present' C of the Sum‘of
Fifteen Spanish dollars, "once and for all. o |

. As John Samuel sald in a ‘letter written some years later

;to his mother, Marguerite, or Charlotte Marguerite as she was fl

afterwards called, was born in the City of Vergennes, Vermont 1n

the month of January or February 1794. _How her father brought Ler |

- from Vergennes'to_Quebec while she was but a very small_child can -

only be a matter of Speculation Communications between the two

places must have been long, arduous and uncomfortable, and that

John Samuel should have succeeded in bringing his child ‘this long_
_ dlstance to Quebec is indeed astonishing, not only because of the
h physical difficulties that he had to overcome but also because of

~all the surrounding Circumstances.

By the time ‘John Samuel returned to Quebec ‘in July 1796
his parents had sold the de Buacde property and had moved to St.



Stanislas Street '(;), ‘of which they occupied a part, with two
- _servants, and some other person - oerhaps.Mme.Renaud Vho livede!
| .with them.. They were both well advanced in'years; de Montmollin-
‘was 75 or 76, and in failing health "and his wife was'68 Under,dh‘
'these conditions they were scarcely able to undertake the o -
‘upbringing of a child of two and ha11 years old even ir they had 1f{
been Willlng to do so, which quite poss1b1y they were not. o
| The choice of Decareau and his wife may perhaps ‘be
explained by the fact that they then llved on Ste Anne Street
on whﬁch the de Buade property owned by de Montmollin had fronted
and consequencly were well known to Marcuerite's father They o
appear not to have been fervent Roman Catholics for in the Parish :
1Census.of Jnne'Sth; 1795, it is noted that the husbandfnas "’1oigné
des Sacrements". N | vi | ' B
- How long Marguerlte remalned with the Decareawscan only
be a matter of conjecture, but it would seem that it was several

years at least

Though de Montmollln himself was advancing in years and"
~ his health declining he contlnued to participate to a modest extent
~in public activ1ties and to occupy himself w1th his own affairs
. When' His Royal Highness, Prince Edward of Kent, 1eft Quebec in

February 1794,vde Montmollin was among the citizens who had

(1)  The Parish Census made on June 5th,-1795;‘8h0V8 that de
-Montmollin's household at 1 St. Stanislas St. consisted of
two parishicners, both communicants, and three Protestants.
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presented'and signed an_Address;‘and he}continued toAbe a cdntrie‘
butor to the_QuebechFire'Scciety,_to which he~regu1ar1y gave fiVe.
shillings (1)' He no 1onger'preached charity-Sermons for thexrelief
of the sick poor as he had done prior to the vis1tation of Bishop ‘
Inglis; indeed his ‘duties as French reader and Preacher to the

Canadian Protestants at Qnebec were only nominal though he continued.

| to receive his annual stipend of & 200. But nonetheless he

occasionally officiated at baptisms,;marriages and hurials;iand'

 continued to do so until July 1803 .

One of tne later entries in hlS revister relates to the

burial of an old friend For March 19th 179# there is the

' following entry s .

"Buried John Renaud, Esq'r, Grand Voye_ 60 years old
"was buried the very day of his biruhday in the old burying
ground " , _

hde Montmollin had officiated at Renaud's narriage - the second he

had celebrated followlng hlS arrival in Quebec in the summer 1768
‘ So far as his worldly aixairs were concerned 1t is quite
obvious that until Odber had paid the second instalment of the balance

of nrice he owed, de Montmollin was in no position to enter upon a

- financial transaction of any signliicance As mentioned earlier

it was only in November 1796 following the receipt of L 208 from :
Odber, that he made a loan. of % 111 to the merchants Louis and

Charles Fremont, which later was to be*the source of muchiconcernA

and +rouble to Mrs. de Montmollin In the following year, he nade

another loan of L lOO sterling ecual to B 111 2 2 currency,,

(1) ‘Quebec Gazette of June 18, 1796; June 29, 1797, etec. -
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‘thls occasion to Captain John-Robertson of the 2nd Battalion df His
 Majesty's 60th (or Roval‘Amerioan) Regimentf for whom JohnALynd |
agreed O be surety.. o | ; A
Then in: 1798 after Odber had paid his last instalment
de Montmollwn made five more mortgages, all of small amounts except:
one of £ 110 to Felix Tetu the Notary. At the end of that year N
; -de Montmollin would appear to have had seven mortgages payable toi'
: him, but the total came to less than & 500 which would seem to - '
have represented about ail the savings that he had been able to B
put aside. _ | L » | ‘ | j_ . E
o Despite his limited means; defMontmollin, when in”l799 :
an appeal was made for Voluntary subScriptions in support'of the
- War (1), made a contribution of £ 10 0 O, which was acknowledged a
" in the Quebec Gazette of Aug;ust 15th, 1799 '_ ' ' .
_ oe Montmollin's health must have given concern to himselftt
Aand his wife, and his will made on March 7tn,,1797, notes that he'f'A
was ill at the time. It relates that on that day at 9 o'clock in _7.
‘<the morning at his request Notary Lelievre had gone to his’ res idence
~on St Stanislas Street and had found him ill in a room overlooking
the courtyard though of sound mind, memory, Judvment and under-
standing, and that he had declarea it to be his will to leave t0"A
' his beloved wife, Jane de Montmollin, all of his property, and to
_appoint her his sole Executrix., His Will does ‘not mention Marguerite
or any'of his.three sons. |
Phree years later, almost to the day; de'Montmollin

rene wed his application for the Township of Wentworth.  The Petltion

(1) Between England and France.




88.

- whichtcertainly is'a tribute to his perseyerance and persistence -
vas addressed to Robert Shore'Milnes, the Lieutenant—qovernorgtin '
Council. It represented’that the petitioner had'been an early ﬂ
7 applicanu for a grant of oart of tne waste lands of the Crown and
‘had obtained a Warrant of survey for the Township of Sommerset (so- .
‘spelled) but had relinquished his pretensions thereto upon his son .
- John Samuel's petitloning for the Township of Wentwortn. Theu it
noted that his son had explored that township at considerable expense,
"the amount of which it is not at present in the power of the '
petitioner to state for want of vouchers, hiu,son being absent from b.
- the Province", and expressed the nope uhat he would not be ‘deemed |
: tpresumptuous}to plead his long-services, since the.year 1768 as
‘Clerk‘of the Protestant Church of Quebec, in.support'of'his'petition;
~particularly as the oovernment had been pleased t consider‘the. -
late Rev'd Dr. De Lisle of Montreal in the Dispensation of. His
Majesty's Bounty (l)" It concluded with the prayer that the Council
would direct that a warrant of survey and subdivision issue in his
favour for the Township of Wentworth and that - such associates as’ he
mightAbe permitted to bring forward with himself may respectivelyr '
~ have 1200 aéres thereon ‘upon the old fees" Because no doubt of‘
the state of de Montmollin's 111 ‘health, the Petition was signed by
Mr. L. Phillips as attorney for the’ Petitioner;' and was. afterwards
supplenented by the certificate dated 19 November 1801 and signed
by BenJamin Ecuyer - one of the witnesses of de Montmollin's will -x
that at the request of Samuel de Montmoliin he had explored the

Townshlip of Wentworth in the winter of 1796.

[y

'(l), Many years before the Rev'd Dr. De Liele had been granted
5000 acres of land
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Almost three years after, - on January luth 1803 -

Phillips submitted a List of Associates,.which included de Montmollin

- as "Leader" and nine others, all of whom were. accepted as settlers,l

: and later that month it was referred to the whole Council but not

_ immediately acted upon.i'
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Though this was nearly the.last matter of business which -

de Montmollin transacted, he;made one more loan, on.SeptemberdQnd, -

1803, to Xavier T. de Lanaudliere formerly_an advocate,'of £ 100 S

sterling to bezrepaid in 6'years;withlinterest at six per cent‘per<'s'

annum. This was the last transactionfto which de Montmollin was a -

party, for on December 17th of that year heicame toihis.end; at the .

venerable'age of 82,

The_register of the Metropolitan Church records his death

~ on that date, and his burial onvDecember 20th, by Salter Jehosaphat l

'Mountain,’the new Rector. of the English Church at Quebec, in the

' presence of two friends, George Allsopp and George Longmore.

It cannot be said that de Montmollin's ministry was a

success or that it achieved the objectives that those wno sought the

‘appointment of a French speaking clergymen had had in mind But

-that there were extenuating circumstances is beyond dispute 'The

ccmplete indifference of the. government at Ouebec and of. successive

.Governors to the need of a church for the exciusive use of the

English Protestant population partly explains the 1ack of progress

of the church . and de Montmollin's imperfect pronunciation of



fEnglish undoubtedly marred the effect of his ministrations vBut

it is quite clear that he did not merit the severe criticism whicn f'

Doty had expressed to the S.P. .G. nor the strictures of Bishop

Inolis. “The Rev.‘Ernest Hawkins had a kinder view of de Montmollin;

,,dof whom he wrote in 1849 (1) : "Mr de Montmollin lived till the-¢:
‘commencement of tne present century and is still remembered by some
“as a respectable, well informed clever old man, with his .o0ld- |

.fashioned clerical dress, and a_great white_wig".f

(1) “Annals of the Diocese of Ouebec", by Ernest Hawxins, D D
PuOLisheo in London, England in 1849
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.Former: Quebec’ beeral leader
George C: Marler was remem-,
- bered yesterday as “a “fearless

spokésman ‘and defender of .the -
highest ideals of freedom,idecency‘

and integrity.”

yesterday before about 600 family.
and fr;ends in the downtown' St:

George’s:-Anglican Church, Rev. -
Kenneth Cleator-also gave thanks

for Marler’s work in’ “making the
commumty of men a- better and
happier place.to live.”

Marler, 79, dled Fnday mght of-

al heart attack

‘Cleator’s. prayerful trlbute to-
© Marler’s service to “the Lord, the -
community and the world” were

virtually* the only references to
Marler’s intimate connectlon with
some of the crucial political issues
of a quarter-century "There were,
for’' example, :no’ honorary pall-
bearers. .

‘Marler, born in 1901 to a-famnly.

that had been estabhshed in Can-

ada for a century and a half, had'a” }
political .career on Montreal city.

councjl and in the provincial and

federal' legislatures -that 'lasted'

from 1940 to the mid- 1960s. "

Marler, who began his pohtxcal 8

career as vice-president of the City

of Montreal executive committee.

from 1940 to 1947, sat as a mem-

ber of the Qiebec legislature from = *

1542 to 1954, leading a small band

of provinciai-Liberals in opposxtlon -

between 1948 and.1953.; .

It was the heyday of the late
Union Nationale Premier Maurice -

Duplessis and Marler — known for

his cultivated French ‘although
‘English was his first language — .
led what often seemed a virtual -
one-man opposntxon agamst “Le- "

Chef.” .

in federal cabmet

Marler was transport mlmster in
Prime Minister Louis St. Laurent’s

federal Liberal: cabmet between »

1954 and 1957 -

He was. appomted government
leader in the Legislative Council,
the now-defunct upper house of the
Quebec legxslature ‘and”minister.
without portfolio. in” the "govern-
ment of Liberal Premier Jean Le- -
" sage in 1960. He remamed in the .
- cabinet untxl 1965

Although Lesage was hxs own fl-

“nance minister, Marler, a notary; .

- took a leading role in" financial
matters. Opponents often critic-

barons of Montreal’s St. James St..

cabinet but was still Liberal leader
“in the upper house — was a west-

‘ern Canada speaking tour aimed at ~
fostering better .mutual ‘under-.
", standing of the regional asplratxons‘

of Quebec-and the west. -

Among hlS last public state
ments was a commentary printe

Prophetically,  one of Marler’s

. .. last activities in-public life — in-"
.- 1966, when-he had left the Lesage .

" official language.in Quebec for half .

. that time, and despite the heavy

: pendmg language leglslaﬁon of the B

Parti Quebecois government. °

“What is"so difficult to under- -
~stand in the circumstances is the

ized him as an “eminence grise” — ' .desire to relegate the English lan-
a supposed envoy of the financial .

) ; . Gazette Gsorge Blrd
George Marler’s wudow, Phylhs, and son Dr. Enc Marler

guage to a footmg of mfenorlty," -

- he wrote.” - ... « )
- He' said that although Enghsh
had been. an official language for

more than 200 years and the only

English influence of the surround-

“Surely,” he’ ‘wrote, “it is time

province good: government and to
seek independence only after a ref-

..erendum shows that. 1s what Que— :
ln The Gazette in 1977 on. the then- i ;

becers«really -want.’, o

* ing continent, “French is_not. just.-
as strong as ever, it is stronger -
" ._than ever and better than ever.” .-

- Although he left actnve pohtlcs
Lin ‘the ‘middle  sixties,  he’:-main-
tamed a keen mterest in pubhc .

_for the PQ to recall the’ promnses .
on which it was elected: to give the -
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